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Report of the Chairman

ERRE

I would like to present to the shareholders the audited consolidated
results of Hoifu Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, loss attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$37,756,000
(2013: HK$21,471,000) equivalent to loss per share HK$0.0249
(2013: HK$0.0147).

Due to the severe situation of slow economy recovery of China and
weaker domestic demand for the Group’s products, during the year
under review, the Group had recorded a decrease in revenue, from
approximately HK$562.9 million in 2013 to approximately HK$313.1
million in 2014. The Group would continue to adopt appropriate
market strategies to maximize both revenue and operating profit as
well as to minimize credit risks. After a series of acquisitions made
by the Company in 2013, the Company has been actively focusing on
the development of these newly acquired projects in the current
year, such as trading of petrochemicals and natural resources, in
order to improve its profitability. Other than that, the Company would
continue to explore other business opportunities in making
acquisitions in the area of trading of natural resources and
petrochemicals, exploration and production of mineral, oil and gas,
for business rationalization and diversification.

Looking forward, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the future
and domestic demand recovery and expects that the business of
newly acquired projects to be promising. Leveraging the potential of
these projects and the extensive experience of the management, we
believe that the Group will achieve better results and hence optimize
return for shareholders.
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Report of the Chairman

ERRE

I ' would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for supporting the Group over the
years and contributing to the Group’s healthy development. In
appreciation of your support, we will remain committed to moving
our business forward to achieve even greater success in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, GB.S., J.P.
Chairman

27 March 2015
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RESULTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the total revenue for the
Group was approximately HK$313,127,000 (2013: HK$562,886,000).
Loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$37,756,000 (2013: HK$21,471,000). The significant decrease in
overall revenue was mainly attributable to the impact of oversupply
of coal in the mainland China and declining coal prices. Revenue of
HK$25,432,000 (2013: HK$25,560,000) was generated from financial
business which no material fluctuation in revenue compared with
the prior year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's consolidated revenue for the year was approximately
HK$313.1 million (2013: HK$562.9 million) representing a year on year
decrease of 44.4% as compared to the same period last year. This is
due to severe situations of the slow recovery of world and China
economy, weak domestic demand for the Group’s main products
such as coals. The weak demand gave rise to more intensified
market competition which resulted in extra pressure on coal prices
and sales were achieved at the expense of leaner margins. Facing
this harsh business environment, the Group however was cautious
about screening customers and adopted appropriate market
strategies to maximize both revenue and operating profit as well as
to minimize credit risks.

Administration expenses

Administration expenses, which represented approximately 18.5%
(2013: 8.6%) of the Group’s revenue, increased by approximately
20.3% to approximately HK$58.0 million for the year from
approximately HK$48.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The increase was mainly attributable to the increases in the
staff costs, rents of offices, as well as legal and professional fees on
acquisitions during the year under review.
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Other gains and losses

During the year under review, the Group recorded other gains of
approximately HK$0.9 million (2013: other gains of approximately
HK$6.7 million), decreased by approximately 85.9% or by
approximately HK$5.8 million. The decrease in other gains was
mainly due to the fact that a reversal of allowance bad and doubtful
debts of approximately HK$6.3 million, a one-off gain, was
recognised last year while only HK$1.4 million was noted during the
year under review.

OIL AND GAS, AND MINERAL MINING
BUSINESS

The Group owns 100% of the exploration, exploitation and operation
rights as well as the profit sharing right of Madagascar Oilfield Block
2101 which is an onshore site with total area of 10,400 square
kilometers in the northern part of Madagascar. Pursuant to the
exploration, exploitation and oil and gas production sharing contract
and depending on the rate of liquid petroleum production of
Madagascar Qilfield Block 2101, the Group will share the remaining
petroleum profit after government royalty and recovery of petroleum
costs according to the sharing ratios in the range of 40% to 72.5% as
set out in the profit sharing right.

In March 2015, the Group disposed Karl Thomson Energy Limited
which holds the interest in oil and gas concession agreement in
relation to West Esh El Mallaha area in Egypt (the "WEEM"). Given the
continual unrest in Egypt, the Group has decided to pull out of the
country and the Directors are of the view that this disposal is in the
best interest of the Group.

The Group owns 65% interest in the rights granted under the Licence
253 in respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of approximately 1,056
square kilometers situated in Kitui District Eastern Province, Kenya,
and the Licence 341 in respect of Kenya Mine 341, an area of
approximately 417 square kilometers situated in Nandi County,
Kenya. Pursuant to the Licence 253 and relevant provisions of the
Mining Act of Kenya, the Group is authorized to prospect, explore
and mine industrial minerals (including but not limited to copper) in
Kenya Mine 253. The Group was also granted the Licence 341 for
prospecting and exploration of gold, iron ore and non-precious
minerals in Kenya Mine 341. Both Licence 253 and 341 have renewed
during the year and the latest expiry dates are 14 April 2016 and 15
January 2016 respectively.
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During the year, the Group had endeavored to carry out the
exploration works in Madagascar oilfield block 2101 and Kenya Mine
253 & 341.

FINANCIAL BUSINESS

The revenue of financial business of the Group generated from
securities, futures and options broking business, underwriting
commission, advisory for financial management business and
interest income from securities margin loan portfolio.

There was no material fluctuation in the overall revenue compared
with last year as the increase in interest income from financial
business was offset by the decrease in advisory and consultancy fee.

The improvement in interest income was mainly attributable to the
great market volatility which provided opportunities for investors. On
the other hand, the decrease in revenue from provision of advisory
and consultancy service was mainly due to weaker demand for
transactions amid the cautious sentiment in the light of uncertain
Quantitative Easing policy in USA comparing with last year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

On 8 & 31 October 2014 the Group entered into agreements to
acquire 55% equity interest in Hebei Panbao Zeolite Technology Co.,
Ltd. T2 =% A RBHE AR A 7)) (“Heibei Panbao”). The principal
activities Hebei Panbao are mining and production of zeolite, which
is the main raw material for the production of lightweight orthopedics
materials, far infrared materials, large solar energy storage materials,
building materials, catalytic materials and micro and nano materials,
and related products. Hebei Panbao has obtained the mining license
of zeolite from the Bureau of Land and Resources of Zhangjiakou
Municipal for the period from 23 April 2014 to 23 February 2017 in a
zeolite mine located in Chicheng County, Zhangjiakou City, Hebei
Province, the PRC with a total area of approximately 0.135 square
kilometers and mining depth ranged between 1,450 meters and 1,300
meters. The Group intends to restructure the capital funding of Hebei
Panbao to increase Renminbi (“RMB") 30,000,000 into the capital of
Hebei Panbao, of which RMB15,000,000 is intended to be used for
the expansion of the production plant and facilities and the remaining
RMB15,000,000 is intended to be used for general working capital.
Upon completion of the expansion, the production capacity of the
mine is expected to reach or exceed 300,000 tons per annum. This
transaction was completed on 11 February 2015.
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PROSPECT

From a long term perspective, China’s economic transformation has
just begun. The Company is cautiously optimistic about the future
and domestic demand recovery is expected to pick up again. The
Company will actively react to it. Currently, the Company is focusing
on the development of the new projects acquired. Leveraging the
potential of these projects and the extensive experience of the
management, we believe we can capture the enormous
opportunities provided by the domestic demand recovery for the
natural resources and petrochemicals in the future and bring value
to our shareholders.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$365,148,000 (2013: HK$262,820,000). The net
current assets of the Group were HK$143,158,000 (2013:
HK$243,189,000), which consisted of current assets of
HK$359,451,000 (2013: HK$430,628,000) and current liabilities of
HK$216,293,000 (2013: HK$187,439,000), representing a current ratio
of approximately 1.66 (31 December 2013: 2.30).

The Group's capital expenditure, daily operations and investment are
mainly funded by cash generated from its operations, loan from
financial institutions, and equity financing. During the period, the
Group obtained short-term bank borrowings which is mainly
facilitating the margin to client for the application of Initial Public
Offering and daily operations and investments. As at 31 December
2014, the Group has cash and cash equivalent (excluding the pledged
fixed deposits of general accounts) of HK$78,015,000 (31 December
2013: HK$177,839,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio, expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings (including bank loans and overdrafts)
over shareholders’ funds, was at a level of nil (31 December 2013:
nil).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has given guarantee to bank in respect of the
securities margin financing facilities granted to subsidiary. As at 31
December 2014, nil (31 December 2013: nil) of such facilities was
utilised by the subsidiary to facilitate daily operation.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group held banking facilities from various banks as at 31
December 2014. The Group's banking facilities were secured by
guarantees given by the Group’s bank deposits, margin clients’ listed
securities and the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, bank deposits amounting to approximately
HK$5,204,000 was pledged to secure banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary and no margin clients’ listed securities were pledged.

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits amounting to approximately
HK$7,543,000 was pledged to secure banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary and no margin clients’ listed securities were pledged.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 1,543,452,000 of HK$0.10 each (2013:
1,488,104,000 shares of HK$0.10 each).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of 105 staff
(2013:105) of which 28 were commission based (2013: 27) and the
total related staff cost amounted to HK$34,123,000 (2013:
HK$28,438,000). The Group's long term success rests primarily on
the total integration of the company core value with the basic staff
interest. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical schemes and bonus. The future
staff costs of the sales will be more directly linked to the
performance of business turnover and profit. The Group maintained
organic overhead expenses to support the basic operation and
dynamic expansion of its business enabling the Group to respond
flexibly with the changes of business environment.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the financial year 2014, except that
the Chairman and the Managing Director who are appointed for a
term of 3 years respectively are not subject to rotation or taken into
account in determining the number of directors to retire in each
annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.2. of
the Code. As continuation is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long-term business plans, the Board believes
that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow more
effective planning and execution of long-term business strategies,
that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and
the shareholders as a whole.

During the financial year, the Company has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors of the Company.
Based on specific enquiry of the Directors of the Company, all
Directors have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Mode Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Throughout the accounting period covered by this announcement,
the Company has complied with the minimum requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one of which have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2014 of the
Group. The Audit Committee is composed of 3 Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company.
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HONORARY CHAIRMAN AND SENIOR
CONSULTANT

Dr. Hatoyama Yukio, aged 68, was appointed the Honorary
Chairman and a senior consultant of the Company on 21 March
2013. With the amicable relationship with renowned global energy
groups from Japan, China and Africa, as well as the successful
experience and leadership in cooperative development and
operation of international energy projects, Dr. Hatoyama is deeply
confident of participating and guiding the Group's energy
development business.

Dr. Hatoyama, first elected to the House of Representatives of Japan
in 1986. He held office as a member in the House of Representatives
for the eighth consecutive term. Hatoyama became the President of
Democratic Party of Japan, the main opposition party in Japan, in
May 2005. He then led the party to victory in the August 2009 general
election and was appointed as the 93th Prime Minister in September
2009. Dr. Hatoyama graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering from
the University of Tokyo in 1969 and received a PhD in Industrial
Engineering from Stanford University in 1976.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Hui Chi Ming G.B.S., J.P., aged 50, was appointed the Chairman
and an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He
is responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Dr. Hui received a Doctor Honoris
Causa in Economics and IFES Doctoris Honoris Causa from the
Institute of Far Eastern Studies, The Russian Academy of Sciences in
2002. The Department of Social Sciences of The Russian Academy of
Sciences had also awarded Dr. Hui the scientific degree of Doctor
Honoris Causa in 2005. Dr. Hui had over 10 years of experience in
the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil and gas business.
He has been the chairman of the board of over 20 companies such
as Hoifu Petroleum Group Limited (8l & £ & &£ E & B 2 7)),
Madagascar Industrial and Commercial Bank (552 i in g $R1T),
Madagascar Southern Petroleum Company Limited (552 A1ET hnEE 5
£ h A B A 7)) and Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company
Limited (552 mn&ronik 75 AB AR A 7). From 2004 to 2010, Dr. Hui
was the chairman and an executive director of Sino Union Energy
Investment Group Limited, which was subsequently re-named as
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 346)
and engaged in the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil
and gas business. Dr. Hui was a member of the 9th, 10th and 11th
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is the chairman of the Confucian Academy of Hong
Kong, a standing committee member of the All-China Federation of
Industry & Commerce, the honorable president of the Beijing
Federation of Industry & Commerce, a standing committee member
of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, the president of
Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited, the president of the Hong
Kong General Association of International Investment and the chief
president of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisation. Dr. Hui is also the Honorary Consul in Hong Kong of the
Republic of Madagascar. All these years, Dr. Hui has been actively
participating in promoting poverty alleviation and charity, and he has
been awarded the China Glory Society Medal for Poverty Alleviation
(hE N ¥ EXE #E) and accredited as China Top Ten Poverty
Alleviation Contributor (2 B + Xk & ik 7T) by the government of
the PRC. In recognition of the outstanding contribution of Dr. Hui to
poverty alleviation, the International Minor Planet Naming Committee
(BB NMTE®EZZ B€) approved permanently naming the minor
planet No. 5390 as “Hui Chi Ming Planet”.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Neil Bush, aged 59, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Mr. Bush graduated from Tulane
University with a bachelor’s degree in International Economics and
from the Tulane University Freeman School of Business with a
master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Bush had over 30
years of experience in energy related businesses and international
business development. He formed oil companies which explored oil
resources in various states in the United States of America, and has
also engaged in various international business development activities
with a focus on the PRC and Middle East and in particular, he visited
cities in the PRC and worked with numerous entities on a variety of
projects including real estate development, energy, automobile
parts, sheet rock manufacturing and paint production. From 7
December 2010 to 20 July 2012, Mr. Bush was a non-executive
director of China Resources and Transportation Group Limited, a
company of which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 269). Mr. Bush serves on the board of Singhaiyi, a Singapore
based real estate company. He is also the Chairman of the Points of
Light Institute, a national charitable organisation formed by President
George H.W. Bush in 1989 that promotes citizen service through
volunteerism in communities all across America and increasingly
overseas, and serves on the boards of the Barbara Bush Houston
Literacy Foundation, the Houston Salvation Army, and the Bush
School of Government and Public Service.

Dr. Chui Say Hoe, aged 66, was appointed as the Managing
Director and an executive director of the Group. He is responsible for
overall strategic planning and operations and in charge of the
execution and further development of the Group’s expansion plan.
He has been the executive director and general manager of Sun Hoe
Company Limited, a company engaged in medicine distribution and
trading business, since 1978. Dr. Chui is also a director of the
Honourable Mr. Tsui Sze Man (GBM) Foundation For the
Development of Technology and Education in Myanmar Ltd., since
2000. He is also a director of the Mirror Post culture Enterprises Co.,
Ltd., since 2009. Before joining Sun Hoe Company Limited, Dr. Chui
worked in commercial bank in Hong Kong for about 5 years. Dr. Chui
has more than 30 years experience in commerce and general
business management. He was granted Honorary Doctorate of
Management from Morrison University, Nevada, U.S.A.. Dr. Chui was
a member of Post-Release Supervision Board, HKSAR, from
November 2005 to November 2007. He was an adjudicator of the
Registration of persons Tribunal from June 2007 to June 2013. Dr.
Chui was award The World Outstanding Chinese Award by World
Outstanding Chinese Association. Dr. Chui was an executive director
of Sino Union Energy Investment Group Limited (Stock code: 346,
currently known as Yanchang Petroleum International Limited) from
2 November 2004 to 6 October 2010.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, aged 51. He is responsible for the
implementation of the overall strategic planning and the overall
development of the Group. Mr. Lam is the founder of the Group. He
has extensive experience in the securities, futures, options, fund
management and financial advisory industry. He is the Chairman,
Executive Director and Managing Director of ATNT. He is the brother
of Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, aged 56. He is responsible for overall strategic
planning of the Group. He is a co-founder of the Group and is in
charge of the stockbroking, futures and options broking, securities
margin financing business, fund management and financial advisory
business. Mr. Nam has extensive experience in the securities, futures
and options, securities margin financing, fund management and
financial advisory industry. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Nam is also the Deputy
Chairman and Executive Director of ATNT. He is the brother of Mr.
Lam Kwok Hing.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric, aged 51, is a director of several general
trading companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from the Boston
University in Massachusetts, USA and is engaged in the food import
business. Mr. Chen was appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director since September 2000.

Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan, aged 52, holds a Bachelor degree in
Engineering Science and a Master of Arts degree from the University
of Oxford and has over 20 years of experience in the consumer
electronics field. Mr. Kwan is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of ATNT. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since September 2004.

Mr. Ng Chi Kin David, aged 53, is a professional accountant with
over 20 years of professional experience and is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, member of
CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of ATNT. He was appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2000.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 46, is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary. He is responsible for the financial and
secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Fu joined the Company in
December 2012. He holds a bachelor degree in science with major in
accounting of Bemidji State University, USA and is a member of both
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 19 years of
experience in auditing and accounting field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Kwan, aged 41, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited and is responsible for the daily
operations and implementation of the internal control procedures of
the Kwun Tong branch. He holds a Bachelor of Business (Banking
and Finance) degree from University of South Australia. He has
extensive experience in the securities, futures and options industry.
He joined the Group in July 1997.

Mr. Sung Wing Yiu, aged 58, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited. He is responsible for the management
and development of internet trading services, securities, futures and
other derivatives business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of
Social Science degree in Government & Public Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong. He is also
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Sung has extensive
experience in the securities and futures industry and held senior
positions in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in February 2001.

Ms. Yung Wai Ching Ada, aged 49, is the Director of Karl Thomson
Energy Limited and is responsible for the daily operations and
management of oil and gas exploration business. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong
Kong. She is a member of ACCA and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. She has over 24 years of finance experience in
various industries including telecommunication, trading,
manufacturing and system integration. She is also the Deputy
General Manager of ATNT, the associate of the Group. She joined the
Group in 2006.
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INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP

Mr. Chow Ka Wo Alex, aged 48, is the Director of Karl Thomson
Financial Advisory Limited. He is responsible for the operation of the
Group’s investment banking business since joining the Group in
March 2002. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chow had worked at
various international investment banks. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Applied Mathematics and Economics from the University
of California at Berkeley and a Master of Arts degree in Economics
from the Cornell University in the USA. Mr. Chow was an Executive
Director of Sino Katalytics Investment Corporation (stock code: 2324)
and he is now an Executive Director of Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 0747). He is also currently a
visiting professor of Guang Xi College of Foreign Languages.

TECHNOLOGIES DEVELOPMENT GROUP

Mr. Hau Kwok Yuen, aged 43, is the Chief Technical Officer of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall planning and management of
the internet trading platform and network infrastructure of the
Group. He graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied
Computing (Honor) from the Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr. Hau
has solid experience in software development, web application
management, database management, back office operation and
network administration. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hau had over
12 years of experience in different systems of the equity market such
as Real-time Quote Service, Internet Trading, the Pilot batch of BSS
to the AMS/3 of the HKEX. He joined the Group in January 2008.
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The Directors would like to present to shareholders their annual
report (“Annual Report”) and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group include petrochemical production, oil and gas
exploration and production, mineral mining business and provision
of financial services. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
Sstatements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 50 of the Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the past five financial years ended 31 December 2010, 2011,
2012, 2013 and 2014 is set out on page 144 of the Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.S., ).P. (Chairman)
Mr. Neil Bush (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. Chui Say Hoe (Managing Director)
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric
Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan
Mr. Ng Chi Kin David

In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting and pursuant to A.4.3. of
the Corporate Governance Code, any further appointment of an
Independent Non-Executive Director in excess of nine years should
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
Therefore, Mr. Chen Wei-Ming, Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan and Mr. Ng
Chi Kin David retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment for a term of three years until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by the Independent Non-
Executive Director on the Company or in accordance with the terms
set out in the respective letters of appointment. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

The Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting does not have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical information of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 18 of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a three-year term commencing from 1
September 2000 which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation. These service contracts shall continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party with not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Board considers and
recommends to the Board the remuneration of all Directors is
subject to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to
ensure that the levels of their remuneration and compensation are
appropriate. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES EERRD 2R

At 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and their R-ZE—WE+-—A=+—H0 EERHEZ
associates in the shares of the Company and its associated ZARAKRATREREEZE (TEREFFLHEE
corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and 3| ([ &5 R EIEES ) EXVELD) 2k - A
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register IZARTIREZERBERIIEIIEFSHE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or  MFETER4E - HIRBEBEBHA X HMER AT ([F
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of  ZFr ) 5545 Fm#RBI([ LA FHARES
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code  #1T5E A 5 2@ <p A ([1E£ <70 ]) BITHE
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the ANAR BB Z 0T ¢

“Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of 1. REAQAFERAEIIOELEER
HK$0.10 each of the Company ZRE
Percentage
of the issued
Number of issued share capital
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
(RN
EEgE 54 FHERTEEREE EBRTRAEIL
Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 956,291,143 61.96%
PR SEE L (MfaE 1) S8 WoNE v o
Note 1:The shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned as to Bz b B ESERERER AR ([958
820,163,143 shares by Triumph Energy Group Limited (“Triumph”), R ZHABEBRAERAR(HRE]) &
127,718,000 shares by Taiming Petroleum Group Limited (“Taiming”) and Wisdom On Holdings Limited ([ Wisdom OnJ) %
8,410,000 shares by Wisdom On Holdings Limited (“Wisdom On”). The =g ﬁ8%0,163,143ﬁ’i . 127l718,000H§ &
entire share capital of Triumph is beneficially and indirectly owned as to 8,410,000 + WA F 2 AFE BT - IIFHEE

R 2R ARTERELIRERREBREL
B & A A %= 88 M AMA Energy Group Limited 5
EE A 75.19% 1w - RG22 RAET

75.19% by Dr. Hui Chi Ming through two BVI companies, Taiming and AMA
Energy Group Limited respectively. The entire share capital of Taiming is
wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming while Wisdom On is wholly owned by s+ 2 & BES - 7 Wisdom on Bl & Hoifu
Hoifu Petroleum Group Investment Holding Limited, which is wholly Petroleum Group Investment Holding Limited (&

owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming. Rl R ) 2B o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

2.

Ordinary shares in subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned

One of the Directors has non-beneficial personal equity
interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors of the Company, chief executive or their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’'s share option scheme in the Company
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its ultimate holding company or
any subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

EENRHO 2R (E)
2. 2ENBRAAZEER

H— aEEAEATFEAAETHEA
TR A I E A AR -

BREXHBEEEN R-_T—MOF+_-A
=t—H BMEARAER TBITHRAR
S HEBE ARAR B HEA[ARBEE(E
FRESRIEIRGIFEXVED) 2 ERERD -
HEARMREST - BALCAREZ S LB
BRI 32MGAFE 2B LM 2 E s
FRE - IRBRETASTHAGARARALR
B X 2 (LS gk B ©

By

ARE 2 BB EIFBHNEE A M HRRME
354

BERORESFZH

R IA LI R 2 SRR RT 819D - NEEAEARE R -
ARF - EREERARSIEZKEERAT ZE
KB A E - BEE KB ARR B SEREME
ABBHEROIEFOREMBERNAREEE

1B R -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

@)

24

During the year, the Group received commission income and
other securities dealing income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$183,000 (2013: HK$9,000) from close family
members of two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam
Kwok Lun.

During the year, the Group received interest income from
securities dealing of approximately HK$NIl (2013: HK$100) from
close family members of two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok
Hing and Nam Kwok Lun.

During the year, the Group received interest income from
securities margin financing of approximately HK$8 (2013: Nil)
from ATNT, in which two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing
and Nam Kwonk Lun, have controlling interest.

During the year, the Group received commission income and
other income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$16,000 (2013: HK$13,000) from ATNT, in which two
Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have
controlling interests.

At 31 December 2013, an executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun, advanced approximately HK$86,969,000 (2013:
HK$65,878,000) to the Group. During the year, the Group paid
finance costs of HK$3,721,000 (2013: HK$2,089,000) to the
executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made
minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of
office premises of approximately HK$2,160,000 to Gahood
Holding Company Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive Director of the Company. The
transaction also constitutes a continuing connected transaction
under Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.

A

REXZRESCEEGHRR

RAEER  AEEREFEEAMBES
ERETENRERREERFTZREXEK
BRAEWAREMEFEERANR
183,000/87TL (ZF— =4 : 9,000/87T) °

RAFER  AEERBEHFEEMAMNAKE
FEREAERERBLERSZIRERE
WA BWMAN TR T (ZT—=5F : 1008
JT) e

RAFER  AEBREFRECRES:
NEE(MEEFERERERERMETE
A EE R WM BRAKSE T (=
T—=F 8-

RAFERN  AEERBHREE B TMEE
(MABEERELENERMLEREH
ZH ) WEE S WA RE MK AL
16,0008 T (ZF—=%4 : 13,00087T) °

R-ZE—ZF+-_A=Z+—8 " WiTE=E
B ffm 50 A () N S B FA TR AN 86,969,000 7T (=
T— =4 : 65,878,000/ 7C) e FN » AEEH
MATEFERRLIEINVBER
3,721,000 7L(ZZF—=% : 2,089,000/7T) °

HE-T-—NWF+_A=+—BLEEFE K
EERPHAEMELERNMARANITE
EHEREITHERERB I RESEEAR
RAT M HREAE 42,160,000 7T © ZBAR
SIVEK ETRBINER14ATB T 2 5B E
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
need to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance
to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2013, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Shiny Future Holdings Limited (“Shiny Future”), entered
into the tenancy agreement with Gahood Holding Company Limited
(“Gahood”) in respect of the leasing of office units 9 (portion), 10, 11
and 12 on the 19th Floor of China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong,
with a total gross floor area of approximately 2,789 square feet for
two years commencing from 1 June 2013 and expiring on 31 May
2015 (“Tenancy Agreement”). The annual cap amount for each of the
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2013, 2014, and 2015 are
HK$1,260,000, HK$2,160,000, and HK$900,000 respectively. The total
amount of the transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$3,420,000.

REXZREZCEEZEANER(F)

B EXFRIEESN - RANFREARKFAEAIERE -
VEEMZZFRIELTRVNZBEREERS
FTUAHE - BARA - EHEEERAFHERE
BERARZEAMBARLET Y ARBESE
EYEENETEEEAER ZEAEH -

HEBERS

RZZE—=FAA=+—0 XAREHE2ENH
BRARABREEEAERAR(BE BEtEEE
RARI(IRAEDFILHEERZ  NAB@EESR
B LERTHBEP 1682005 z@F L BEAANE
19 FI(FHH) 10 1MMRI2FPRAZTEN - 42
BEMEMBEN2789TFAR - BT —=F,"H—H
RAMME YHR_T—RAFRAA=+—HER
((HEWwzZ]) BHE_T—=F - —_ZT—NOFK
ZE-RAF+T AT AUEMBEESEZF
& LIREE D B A1,260,00078 7T ~ 2,160,000 7T
900,000 c HE—_ZE—ME+-A=+—H
IEFE 2 X 548%53,420,000/8 7T °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

Gahood is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. Therefore, Gahood is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

According the Tenancy Agreement between Gahood and Shiny
Future constitutes continuing connected transactions for both
Gahood and Shiny Future under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
the relevant percentage ratios for the Tenancy Agreement calculated
on an annual basis were more than 5% but the percentage ratio is
less than 25% and the consideration is less than HK$10 million, in
accordance with Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, the Tenancy
Agreement was subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules,
but is exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement.

The Company had accordingly published an announcement in
respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions on 31
May 2013

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of Directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The auditor has reported the factual findings on these
procedures to the Board of Directors. The Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(20 on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(3)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

26

FEREXRS ()

REHARBNTERMEHRELERE2ERE
BEER EMBRRBRTARRRZEEAL -

SEHERABCHERBER LMRAE14ATEIR
TEERBECHERERS - ANREBE TR
BIZE14A34 15 - IBFE AR EREHZE 2B
B ot X B iE5%E K R25% - K E DR
10,000,000 7T - MAHEWZEBET EMRAUE
1MALA G 2B RERFEEHAT - HER

RETERALERE

EUdi %hlﬂ n#

RRARR-ZZE—=FRA=+—HEHEETEER
W LR ERERR 5 2 N o

BiE ETRAE14A38G  EFGETRARARK
HEMAEB B BRERFETETHERT
REMEMESSERGEZSEF CERAE
BER AR ﬂZéﬁEﬂ#iﬂh%%E*ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁﬂu
FUAIGERFBEBERS  WHERRS

() RARBDEER—REGEEFET

WIZTHER AR AR H
(R¥E

2 NE—REEGEK
TREYE=ZTIMNBILE=TTNE
FERMRE) ZAGRETL + K

Q) REEXFXHMBEMMEIL - BIGHS
NFREANARNR A RERNE -



Annual Report 2014 « —Z—[UFEFF

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholder had notified the Company of
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity

Number of issued
ordinary shares held

FEREXRS ()

ARRCBMEZTEREBSHAMASHEMZ
BB EREBERE 30005 [IFEZARMBE
MBENZERTIE]  WRREBHASE 74058
[BAREE LR RIS EREER 5 2 BT K
B LS ERE R S EITER

R RIE EHRAE VAR FELEBEAE
Bl EXPIRBEREREX S CMBER KSR
ZEREBR R -

FERR

R-ZZE-—WF+-A=1+—8 REXARFLE
FRMEGIIFEBGFEZ T ERRELMAT
LEE - THIRREBAARRRAEARRREHE
TTRRAZ tR RS -

EZIK’D\%%HQEEOAO%E%EEEEZE

Percentage of the share
capital of the Company

R B

565

Triumph Beneficial owner
FE LR EnlEAA

(Note 1 ftzt 1)

Taiming Beneficial owner
S EmEBA
(Note 2 Bzt 2)

Wisdom On Beneficial owner
(Note 3 fif7£3) EmEBA

e #TEBREA EARREREE DL
820,163,143 53.14%
127,718,000 8.27%

8,410,000 0.55%

Note 1: The entire issued share capital of Triumph is beneficially and indirectly owned
as to 75.19% by Dr. Hui Chi Ming through two BVI companies, Taiming and AMA
Energy Group Limited respectively.

Note 2: The entire issued share capital of Taiming is beneficially owned by Dr. Hui Chi
Ming.

Note 3: The entire issued share capital of Wisdom On is beneficially owned by Hoifu
Petroleum Group Investment Holding Limited, which is wholly owned by Dr. Hui
Chi Ming.

Bt SUEHERZEBERITRABFSHELHRER
FE R L BB A A% & AMA Energy Group Limited fE
BEEERT75.19% %

Mtz ZHz2WEBTRABFEHBLERES -

Hia#3 - Wisdom On 2z £ #5817 A% 78 & Hoifu Petroleum Group
Investment Holding Limited (FHFF S #8188 t 2 & HH) &
WA °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no person (other than the Directors of the
Company whose interests are set out under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares” above) had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company'’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's top five customers accounted for approximately 94% of
the total sales. The top five suppliers accounted for approximately
100% of the total purchases for the year.

In addition, the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 40% of the total sales and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 41% of the total purchases for the year.
At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

Save for the company’s purchases of its own shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as disclosed
below, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Number of
shares
repurchased
(= {C

R B E

RIKEFETE

AEBENRKBNF B FEHERGZE P BHRKRM
36 e

EIREFRMEER

AEBEAARTPHEHELN% - A AXHERG
FREREEL100% °

BEON  REEZATFHBHELNI0% - MAK
BSAREEEFRRRBENN% REAE
AEHE SHEEE  REZBEAXARFEM
BERBEEMA - EAARRIRAS% A L)%
FXBEPLHEAT EATMHES -

BA BEExEHAQRRS

BRTIXABRBEARRARBABARXSMERAT
(B ) BRIEAS ZBMIN - RATREE
mfBARREE_T—NE+_A=1+—HB1t
FERENBIMBEA  ELRBEREAARF
Bt e

Aggregate
consideration
paid (before
expenses)
ENARE
(HIRRBASZAT)

Purchase consideration
per share
BREERE
Highest Lowest
B& BI&
HKS HKS
BIT BIT

April mA 15,004,000 1.88 1.54 26,051,800
May hA 7,748,000 1.56 1.19 10,733,020
July +A 500,000 1.03 1.00 509,340
November +—A 40,000 1.03 1.03 41,200
December +=A 8,810,000 1.04 0.94 8,765,980

32,102,000 46,101,340
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 31 to 47.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general

meeting to the Company to re-appoint Elite Partner CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.S., J.P.
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

30

ARTBNEBBIEEZ PETAEHR - AU
ARAZELERRAEN ARENEZUEZ
[gEARE] A -

B Em
AARGRERRFEFAS HEANEE

BHRTERETMEBMAERAARERDAIZE
B o

EEEEM
HrE%iEL 0 GBS, JP.
TE

HFE —E—AF=A=-++H



Annual Report 2014 « —ZE—MEER

Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group.
The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and practices with an emphasis on integrity,
transparency and independence. The board of directors (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success
of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year of 2014, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “"Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), save for the following:

1. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company is not subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to
Byelaw 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the
Code during the year of 2014. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarised in this
report.

ARBRARMEEERHANEE 2K RFE
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction.

To the specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Dr. Hui Chi
Ming (Chairman), Mr. Neil Bush (Deputy Chairman), Dr. Chui Say Hoe
(Managing Director), Mr. Lam Kwok Hing and Mr. Nam Kwok Lun;
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. Chen Wei-
Ming Eric, Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David.
Biographical details, which include relationships among members of
the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section of the Annual Report. The composition of the Board is well
balanced with the Directors having sound industry knowledge,
extensive corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a variety of
experience and expertise to the Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of management while day-to-day
management of the Group is delegated to the management team of
each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking the Board is
responsible for:

o Formulating the Group'’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

o Approval of interim and year end dividend
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
o Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance
o Monitoring the performance of the management

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

o Developing and reviewing the Group'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group's businesses to the Executive Directors,
senior management and certain specific responsibilities to the Board
committees. The Board is committed to making decisions in the best
interests of both the Company and its shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and the Group which give a true and fair
view of the Group's affairs in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The statement by the auditor
of the Company about its reporting responsibilities for the financial
statements of the Company is set out on pages 48 to 49 in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and service of the Company Secretary to ensure
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised eight members,
including five Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, G.B.S., J.P. (Chairman)
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)
Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director)
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric
Mr. KWAN Wang Wai Alan
Mr. NG Chi Kin David

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 18.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board complied with
the Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
and one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related finance
management expertise. All three Independent Non-Executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provisions of the
Bye-laws.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Bye-laws of the Company requires that one-third (if the number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire by rotation each year. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election and those of the other Directors who
have been longest in office since their election or re-election. A
retiring Director is eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting and be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed pursuant to the aforesaid Bye-law shall not be
taken into account in determining which particular Directors or the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Under the code provisions A.4.2. of the Code, every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. However,
according to Bye-Laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing
Director are not subject to retirement by rotation or taken into
account on determining the number of Directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.2. of the Code. As
continuation is a key factor to the successful implementation of any
long-term business plans, the Board believes that the roles of
Chairman and Managing Director provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership and allow more effective planning and
execution of long-term business strategies, that the present
arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Meetings and General Meeting
During the year ended 31 December 2014, sixteen Board meetings

and one general meeting (“GMs”) was held with details of the
Directors’ attendance set out below:

EEg(H)

EZEEERRRAE
RBE-T-mF+ A=+ BLFEERT
TARREEEERR—RBERAE ((REAR])
BMESZ HRFERIIMT -

Board Meeting
Exggl

Number of meetings

Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. HUI Chi Ming (Chairman) RSB (EE)
Mr. BUSH Neil [ERR o fft k4
(Deputy Chairman) =EY)
Dr. CHUI Say Hoe BREFMF L
(Managing Director) (BEFABiEHE)
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing ERELE
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun ERfmitE
Independent Non-Executive Directors: 7 JEBfTE S ¢
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric FRIZEA S A&
Mr. KWAN Wang Wai Alan BRERE
Mr. NG Chi Kin David hEER LA

23

13/16 11
2/16 0/1
15716 1Al
2/16 0/1
3/16 11
4/16 01
5/16 1Al
7/16 1Al

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive
introduction package covering the summary of the responsibilities
and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the
Company'’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written
materials, as well as organizes seminars on the professional
knowledge and latest development of regulatory requirements
related to director’s duties and responsibilities.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

During the year of 2014, there were one in-house seminars
conducted covering the topics of director’s duties under Appendix
10 and Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules under the Listing Rules. All
Directors attended the seminars.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group's business
and overall operations. The day-to-day running of the Company is
delegated to the management with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders for the wellbeing and success of
the Company.

To enhance the effectiveness of the management of the Company,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to oversee corresponding aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have defined written
terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on August 2000 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term of
reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The
written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee were adopted on August 2000 and revised on 1
March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:
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to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the audit fees and the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of their resignation or
dismissal,

monitor the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and to discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences,

to monitor integrity of the Company's financial statements,
annual report, accounts and the half-year report, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures; and

to review compliance with regulatory and legal requirements
by the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee will meet at least four times each year. In 2014,
the Audit Committee met four times considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June 2014,
assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices, major
judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on internal control and the re-appointment of the
external auditor. The Audit Committee also provides in important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review
the independence and objectivity of the auditors.

There were four meetings held during the year under review, details
of attendance are set out below:

ExeRrEE(HA)
BREEE (F)

ERZEeREFELARAGHENR - R2F
—OF - BERZESARNAEHE  UBEEAE
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BT

% LR

b=11r3

Number of meetings = P 4
Audit Committee members: BZEZEENE
Mr. KWAN Wang Wai Alan BRERE
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BEEZEEFE) 4/4
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric PRIZEASE A4 4/4
Mr. NG Chi Kin David hERREAE a/4

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 27 March 2012 and is composed of
one executive director and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Chairman of the Nomination Committee),
Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David.

In order to comply with the Code, the Board adopted terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify and nominate qualified individuals for
appointment as additional directors or to fill Board vacancies as and
when they arise, and to make recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. One Nomination Committee

ExeRrEE(HA)
REZEE(H)
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meeting was held during the year under review, details of attendance EERNBT— K@% HELBHIOT ¢
are set out below:
Number of meeting EBRE 1
Nomination Committee members: RELEEKE -
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, G.B.S., J.P. A E4IE T, GBS, JP.
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (IBREZEEF/E) 171
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric BRIZBASE & 11
Mr. NG Chi Kin David AERLEE i

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board of
Directors of the Company and the retirement and re-appointment
arrangement of the Directors in the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28 July
2005 with terms of reference substantially the same as those
contained in paragraph B.1.3 of the Code. The written terms of
reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Remuneration Committee were adopted on 28 July 2005 and revised
on 1 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange.
A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee is
Independent Non-executive Directors and members of the
Committee are listed as below.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the
following duties:

o to determine the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration and to place recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors from time to time;

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

o to performs an advisory role to the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve executive
directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEeLEg (&)
Remuneration Committee (Continued) FMEES (&)

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration e BV IFRITESTNFNEFENESCRME
on independent non-executive directors; =8

mR RAERRTEZRSREEABXN

o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive

directors and senior management in connection with any loss BB sl R IFBISS R T A RRES(E - ARE
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that RZEREIREEENGERETE  BREEIR
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant BERANIERET  BENEAFESE T
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise S ANTIEKBERE &

fair and not excessive; and

. to review and approve compensation arrangements relatingto e Bt R ERESITAREMRRENERE

dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that FESTSENEETEE  WBRZELTH
such arrangements are determined in accordance with HEBANIERRET BEREREBAENIK
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation HEE BAEBENESERE -

payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that  FHEIEE v B E B B ERA QR GEMR S| - B
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre ELRSEEEAATZKINEREEr SEEZEH -
team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once each year. #HMEE@iSEGFEFELEHEEHE— X - REESE
During the year under review, one meeting was held to considerand (R FMZE S22 BH— 23 UEELRILE

approve the remuneration of all Directors and senior management. 2 EEEZLRSRETIEAE ZHH - ROEFE -
One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year #FMEE @ LR — e HFEFBHEHIET -
under review, details of attendance are set out below:
Number of meeting SERE 1
Remuneration Committee members: FWEEEKE :
Mr. NG Chi Kin David REEREE
(Chairman of the Remuneration (FNZESE/E)
committee) 11
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric BRIZBASE A& ”n
Dr. Chui Say Hoe REFB L 11

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee REEFE  FWEZESECEMARFZBEH
reviewed the existing remuneration policies of the Company. [N2E
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i)  To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) Toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i)  To review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board approved the terms of
reference of the Board and the revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, the shareholder communication policy, shareholder
enquiry procedures and special request procedures.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, is set out as follow:

Services Rendered
FriR AR 75

Audit services BT IR
Other assurance services H M RBREE
Non assurance services FEREB AR TS
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BHEER

(i A LRERAKENBRRMEERATEMAZL
REROIMER(ER) ;

vy #EER- RIREFREARASEZEEE R
BEENTRTARASES(WE) &

V) REAKEHEREATIRERE GRS
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REEEE FEECUETEEZBEDE -
ENEEE RAZESRFMEESZEET
BAERE R IBREE - BRE W RS
R o

P BUET BB =
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NAREINEZBERATERETMEBMER
NEZEEEFINT

Fees paid/payable
2R EAER

HK$'000
TAT

1,050
536
250
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok Ewing, the secretary of the Company whose
biography details are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has appropriate directors and officers liability
Insurance in place for its Directors and senior management, in order
to safeguard them from any legal and compensation liabilities arising
in the course of discharging their duties.

DIRECTOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities for:

(i)  overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable

and prudent judgement and estimates.

A statement by the auditor about his reporting responsibilities is set
out on pages 48 to 49 of this Annual Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishing,
maintaining and operating an effective system of internal control.
The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-
established organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. The Board has clearly defined the authorities and key
responsibilities of each business and department to ensure adequate
checks and balances.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the
Group’s assets against 10ss and misappropriation; to maintain proper
accounting records for producing reliable financial information; to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
fraud and errors. Policies and procedures are established to ensure
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and industry standards
and as the on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the system of internal controls when there are changes to
business environment or regulatory guidelines.

Systems and procedures are also established to identify, measure,
manage and control different risks arising from different businesses
and functional activities. Risk management policies and major control
limits are established and approved by the Board. Significant issues
in the management letters from external auditors and reports from
regulatory authorities will be brought to the attention of the Audit
Committee to ensure that prompt remedial action is taken. All
recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Board is of the view that the system of internal controls in place
for the year under review and up to the date of issuance of the
annual report and consolidated financial statements is sound and is
sufficient to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and
employees, and the Group's assets.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Making Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor standard Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make
a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by
facsimiles or by email, together with his/her contact details, such as
postal address, email or fax, addressing to the head office of the
Company at the following address or facsimile number or via email:

By email to pat@hoifuenergy.com

By letter to the Company'’s registered address: Units 1910-12, 19/F
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

By fax to (852) 2587 7807

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary who shall
report to the Executive Directors periodically on the enquiries
collected. The Executive Directors shall review the enquiries and
assign different kinds of enquiries to appropriate division head/
manager for answering. After receiving the answers of all enquiries
from the relevant division head/manager, the Company Secretary
will collect the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and
approval. The Company Secretary shall then be authorized by the
Executive Directors to reply all enquiries in writing.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In
addition, guestions received from the general public and individual
shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken
to ensure that no price-sensitive information is disclosed selectively.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is responsible for ensuring shareholder communications
are adequate and appropriate and based on transparency and sound
corporate governance principles. The Company adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy on 1 March 2012 which aims to
present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of our
financial position and operational status by providing shareholders
and other stakeholders with information in a timely and transparent
manner. The Company will communicate to shareholders through
written information and electronic communication as follows:

Annual and interim reports

o Disclosures made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

o Notice and circular of general meetings

o Annual general meeting, where the external auditor is available
to answer questions about the audit

o Corporate website: www.hoifuenergy.com

o Direct enquiry sent to the Company
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D

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

BTLE 18 s HER R AT A R 6)
ELITE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hoifu
Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 144,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

Siu Edmund
Practising Certificate Number P05333

Suites 2B-4A, 20th Floor, Tower 5
China Hong Kong City

33 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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mEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ&E—%

Hfe 2 W m =

—HETZA=+—BLEE

2013
HK$ 000
T
Revenue Ug#5 7 313,127 562,886
Cost of goods sold and direct cost BEYISHE KA REEK A (295,548) (542,650)
Gross profit EF 17,579 20,236
Other income E A 3,972 1,435
Other gains or losses HE e sk BB 8 946 6,730
Administrative expenses 1THE R (57,951) (48,175)
Impairment loss on exploration and BhiR M b Er & E R EET1E
evaluation assets 19 (294) (237)
Loss from operation K EsiE (35,748) (20,011)
Finance costs Bi5E A 10 (3,726) (2,257)
Loss before taxation BRI AT BT 18 (39,474) (22,268)
Taxation Fi18 11 721 300
Loss for the year FEEIE 12 (38,753) (21,968)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) Efth 2 EUA (X H)
ltems that may be reclassified HigngEmsEEiEn
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER ¢
Exchange differences arising on WMEEEZIENZRE
translation (4,854) 1,259
Other comprehensive income (expenses) ERHMEEIA (ZH)
for the year (4,854) 1,259
Total comprehensive expenses FAEEX LE5E
for the year (43,607) (20,709)
Loss for the year attributable to: FEIGFE A -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ PN (37,756) (21,471)
Non-controlling interests e AR HE 2 (997) (497)
(38,753) (21,968)
Total comprehensive expenses FEIEEE AR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ 2= DN (41,633) (20,212)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (1,974) (497)
(43,607) (20,709)
Loss per share SREE
— Basic and diluted — EAREE 15 HK$(0.0249)i& Tt  HKS(0.0147) 7T
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e PRI R

At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—ME+_A=+—H

2014 2013
—ZT—NF —F—=
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
{h=a FExT FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 17 8,528 1,634
Intangible assets mIEE 18 8,609 11,011
Exploration and evaluation assets MIERGETEE 19 5,482 5776
Goodwill EES 20 25,950 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of Uk B = b {5 P A S A+t
land use rights ZEE 21 137,456 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of a WEE—RMNEB R RS2
subsidiary HEER 40 34,134 -
Statutory deposits EEEE® 23 4,125 4,107
Loans receivable FEUE R 24 288 406
224,572 22,934
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable FEU AR X 25 108,410 97,376
Loans receivable EWE R 24 2,445 416
Other receivables, prepayments E b BRI ~ TR IR
and deposits Kize 26 76,741 72,255
Pledged fixed deposits BHERERFER(—RES)
(general accounts) 27 5,204 7,543
Bank balances (trust and RITHET (EERBILEP)
segregated accounts) 27 88,636 75,199
Bank balances (general accounts) BITHET (—RER) K e
and cash 27 78,015 177,839
359,451 430,628
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable FETER IR 28 109,908 93,219
Other payables and accrued expenses E b BRI X BT B 29 19,416 28,342
Amount due to a Director EN—ZEE=HE 30 86,969 65,878
216,293 187,439
Net current assets REEEFEE 143,158 243,189
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 367,730 266,123
Non-current liabilities FERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 22 2,582 3,303
Net assets EEFEE 365,148 262,820
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At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—ME+_A=+—H

>>>>>>>

2014
—E-NF
NOTES HK$'000
B =E FET
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital [N 31 154,345 148,810
Reserves i 165,940 142,102
Equity attributable to owners RATEE ANELER
of the Company 320,285 290,912
Non-controlling interests FEfE T 32 44,863 (28,092)
Total equity FERBE 365,148 262,820
The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 144 were ZE50BE 2 M4 BRGAMBREN " SE—RHE=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on A —+-+ HESZEEeH#E MIEERE  WHLT

27 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.s., J.p.

FrEsiE Lt es., )P
DIRECTOR

EF
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meERB X

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
RATREAEERR
Capital Share Share  Currency Non-
Share Contributed redemption  repurchase option translation Accumulated controlling
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests

ROER  EARS EARERE ROBERE RRERE SMERERRE  RHER Nt FERES
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
AL B AL TR TR TR TR

(note d)

At1January 2013 W=%-=%-F-H 145,684 120490 311,544 = = = 32431 (348,184) 261971 (42,930) 219,001
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - - @1.471) @1.471) (497) (21,968)
Exchange differences 3531 - - - - - - 1259 - 1259 - 1259
Total comprehensive expenses for the year  £R2E X HEE - - - - - - 1259 21471) (20212) (497) (20,709)
Shares issued BEARHA 3200 42240 - - - - - - 4540 - 4540
ffect of share options EREz 78 = - - - - 4,744 - - 4,744 - 4,784
Share repurchase and cancelled RBE RS (7 (957) = n = = = (74) (1,031) = (1,031)
Contribution by Non-controlling interests ~ JFiRRiER T4 - - - - - - - - - 11490 11490
Acquisition of subsidiaries ENBAR - - - - - - - - - 3845 3845
At31December 2013 RZE-=%

+-B=1t-B 148810 161,773 311,544 74 = 4,744 33,696 (369,729) 290912 (28,092) 262,820
Loss for the year FEFR = = = = = = = (37,756) (37,756) %97 (38,753)
Exchange differences EREE = = = - - - (3877) - (3877) 977) (4,854)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year A2 H#5 - - - - - - (3877) (37,756) (#1,633) (1974) 43,607)
Effect of share options BihEsye 3,000 4314 - - - (4,748 - - 41,400 - 41,400
Share repurchase and cancelled RBE RS (2:325) (34,969 = 2325 - - = (2329 (37,298) = (37,290
Share repurchase and pending RABEEREARH
for cancellation - - = = (8,807) = = = (8807) = (8.807)
Acquisition of subsidiaries ¢ N 4,860 70,847 - - - - - - 75,707 74929 150,63
At 31 December 2014 W_E-mEF

+=A=1+-R 154,345 240,795 311,544 2399 (8807 = 29819 (409,810) 320,285 44,863 365,148
Note: KiaE :

@  Capital redemption reserve has been set up and is dealt with on repurchasesand (@) ~ EABEGFEHEE R - AREEAQR G HKRH 2 EE

cancellations of the Company’s own shares. The application of the capital Ritif - EABEOREZEABARE-NN—FAF]
redemption reserve is governed by Section 42A of the Companies Act 1981 of TEE LA R(EERT)HE -

Bermuda (as amended).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Operating activities KETE

Loss before taxation B AR 18 (39.474) (22,268)

Adjustments for: TR EER R

Reversal of allowance for bad and RIBAR R ]

doubtful debts (1,443) (6,305)

Interest income FEMA (6,635) (5,738)

Depreciation e 848 480

Amortisation B 2,402 1,001

Finance costs W% &R 2,257 2,257

Impairment loss on exploration and R R AT EERERBE

evaluation assets 294 237

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —ENB ARz Wz - (109)

Gain on bargain purchase EERE W - (394)
Operating cash flows before movements ®EESEFHI2KLES

in working capital RE (41,751) (30,839)
(Increase)/decrease in statutory deposits (), mAEE S (18) 200
(Increase)/decrease in loans receivable (%), R EWME R (1,911) 68
Increase in accounts receivable N FE UL BR 5K (9,591) (19,737)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, A (B h0) E A pE UL BE 2% -

prepayments and deposits TR RIE MR 39,473 (65,821)
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances (trust and (3&hn), @ $R1747F (S5 &%

segregated accounts) BYRE) (13,437) 15,146
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 240 CRid) FEFBE R 16,689 (20,788)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables ORid),/ 38 pnEL 4 FE {5 BR 3k &%

and accrued expenses FEFTE A (9,027) 14,280
Cash used in operations REFMAES (19,573) (107,491)
Interest paid EARFE (2,257) (2,257)
Interest received AL 6,425 5,673
Tax paid EENE A (1,851) -
Net cash used in operating activities BETE AR TE (17,256) (104,075)
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of fixed assets BEETETEE (1,137) (1,363)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries U BE BB A Al 2 3k (Bi7E37)

(Note 37) (97,553) (4,353)
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary e — R B AR TSR - 86
Placement in pledged fixed deposits GFEEERAEHER(—RER) B85

(general accounts), gross 2,339 (13)
Interest received on bank deposits RITIF B W B 210 65
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARSEE (96,141) (5,578)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E—IF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Financing activities REEE
Advance from a Director —HREEIN 21,091 23,906
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FT1S 5RIE 41,400 45,440
Payment on repurchase of shares B EIRRD 2 3K (46,101) (1,031)
Capital contribution from PRI R &
non-controlling interest - 11,490
Net cash generated from REEEFMELREFH
financing activities 16,390 79,305
Net decrease in cash and ReRkERRELEHZ
cash equivalents WA EEE (97,007) (29,848)
Cash and cash equivalents FYzBEeRERBEELEA
at beginning of the year 177,839 206,729
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — JINi& e = pig sk 2 2248 (2,817) 958
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRERESER
at end of the year 78,015 177,839
Analysis of balances of cash and HeRERKRLIER
cash equivalents R AT
Bank balances (general accounts) w7 (—RERP) RIA®
and cash 78,015 177,839
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

56

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company is Taiming Petroleum Group Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group are (1) the trading of natural resources and
petrochemicals; (2) oil and gas exploration and production; and
(3) the provision of financial services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and most of its subsidiaries.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSS

In the current year, the Group have adopted the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") which are relevant to and effective
for the Company’s financial period beginning on 1 January
2014

HK(FRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
HKAS 36 Non-financial Assets
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge Accounting
Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

The initial application of these financial reporting standards
does not necessitate material changes in the Group’s
accounting policies and retrospective adjustments of the
comparatives presented in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSS (Continued)

Standards and Interpretations is issued but

not yet adopted

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

A REETBRMBHREER
2R (&)

CREMERRA 2 ER R 2R

AREEWERF AT 2 BMEIRER
ZHRI RARIERT B AWM B IS £

BEMBHRERAUER SRIA
BEMBREENFE 145 EEETKA?
BAMBRERAE R BFPAOZKWAS
BEMBREEA WA xR
ERIEACH)) L&A

BEGRAF 1R (BE]) RESES

BEGRAF6RREL BEURIZITE
SFERERR(ET])  REELES

BRGRANF16RRELS BR  EXREN®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in
Joint Operations®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Deprecation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions*
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®
(2011)
Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to HKFRSS
2010-2012 Cyclet
Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to HKFRSS
2011-2013 Cycle*
Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to HKFRSS

2012-2014 Cycle®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with early application is permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with
earlier application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions. Earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further encourage
companies to apply professional judgement in determining
what information to disclose in their financial statements. For
example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies
to the whole of financial statements and that the inclusion of
immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial
disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement in determining
where and in what order information is presented in the
financial disclosures.

The amendments can be applied immediately and become
mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Other than as disclosed above, the Directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the above new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and amended HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
state whether they would have a significant impact on its
results of operations and financial position. In addition, the
requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as
from the Company'’s first financial year commencing on or
after 3 March 2014 in accordance with Section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in the
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded
that the impact is unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements will be affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (ji) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSS). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEE)
(Continued)
Business combinations e

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subseqguent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

3.

TESEEE)

EBast(E)

BERARRZ HAREBZ R FEZBNTER
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%'wmﬁmﬂ%ﬁEWﬁﬁ
B nBRERIIARETERERPR
H%E%%%‘ﬁﬁ%%*”ﬁﬂ% EAA

c NREREBESRBZHAREREEE
aﬁﬁﬁ R39S BB GRS 37 57 [
B FRBERIREE] (WER) RER
B B HE TR & - MAREK S EIRNE
g °

BEBAHIBEER  ASELATRIEE
HRBAZREEFTEZWERA S (AA
SEERSEVNEER) ZAFE  MAEL
W sk E5 18 (a0 A ) SR IBSER - BERIK
BHASIRE M E2ERARER 2 WIE S Rk
mATEERENEFT S EEER (WERE
BREBARHEERD) o

WEBEH VTS REREGHEEZR
HHRE AT © A AEERE RTHE T
REZHEEETEHE ZEYTHBEENET
SHE (R E30) TR - WERBINEE
S BE UREBAKEBHEFEmMBEA
Y EZAEBRNEZSERBRIEZ

HER -

65



HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED « SlEfFREBEERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit a
pro rata on the basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBE(E)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition W= ER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Ccommission and brokerage income are recognised when the
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Advisory fee income is recognised when the services are
provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
trading rights is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBE(E)
(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued) BILEE (&)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Alternatively,
intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets are
derecognised.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Costs of exploratory wells (pipelines, drilling
cost and others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic oil and
gas reserves have been discovered.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the search
for natural resources as well as the determination of technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified
as either intangible or tangible assets. These assets are
assessed for impairment before reclassification.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually. When one of the following events or
changes in circumstances, which is not exhaustive, indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable has occurred,
impairment test is performed in accordance with HKAS 36.

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expired during the period or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed.

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned.

o exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of natural resources and
the Group has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area.

° sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset
is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

—HETZA=+—BLEE

3.

TESEEE)

BRI MGETEE (&)

BRI ARAARE R 2 M7 kA%
AT - AMETSERTRER 2 B R R bt B &
DEMDBRENREHNEE - WEEER
EF 0 A LR E M A -

BFRR = B EBIE

BRRAETEECRAESFOFERT - B
BUATNER—HFEHEERFIRZCRRE
HEH TR AR - RIRIEB B ST EAFE
36 SRATTRIE R, °

s ZEEAENFTHEDRIHREE
ENESSYNEIR N S EN RN AR
QB -

s MNEEBEE-—THRRMGEFRRE
R RXREX B IFEBERE K EIR

e RETHEBHERIMBIFRARERLKR
BREAARERGBREZRRER -
MARBERREREEENF THE
P SR

o BEZRABEBER(HAREHARE
EA'/f-irE%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?‘) E)JT%TEME%%%“F
ZFREME TSR] 8L 35 8 IR A 7 3% 3
’%ﬁﬁuﬁlﬁiuﬁﬁﬁﬁ ®



Annual Report 2014 « —Z—[UFEFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEE)
(Continued)
Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued) BIERESTEE (&)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The Group will study a specific area based on all available
technical data. Several drilling locations will be proposed and
discussed amongst project partners before final drilling location
is confirmed. The well costs will be expensed if it is determined
that such economic viability is not attained within the specific
area after performing further feasibility studies that is usually
finished within one year of completion of drilling. If the Group
determines not to further explore a specific area that
previously studied, any outstanding drilling cost and other
exploration and evaluation assets in that specific area will be
impaired immediately.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful life to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 0ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the amount as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBE(E)
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued) ShEE (4B )

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the

2IEEMBRERE  AREEIEBZE
ENAERERENRBERRELSREE
ZHEE(ENET) - WARFXIHARB THRF

Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing ERIEHERKBE  BRIEFANEXRLHHEEKX
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses e BIRANIBERT  WIREX S A IE

items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interest as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group'’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in
relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

3.

TESEEE)

HE (&)

REFENFABRENHPAER R
o REHOEEZ RAE SR E S HRHE
RRXH -

T AR AT ML AR 2 M 40 T ZEER TR 40 22 - 1t
FRPAUEASER - RARBONZEAE
AL TR A £ B S AR o

RAREF KA

EREFURRERF B 25 - NMEBRM
RBZH HREHER R -

BEERA

ARG ERAEEAREREE(AFTE—
BEEHSHFRTARNUFEEZEE)M
BEREEZEBERATMAZEEEZK
K BEEEEECABEAERE RSN
- BEERHAERRAEREERFRE
EREMELZREBATIRAHEER(LE
ERARRHIRR

P A EE RGN E L RN B R o

E@MTA

MEBEERKUNAEMIAS ORI ZETAN
77 AIRERAMBHARRTRATHEER
TRAE-



Annual Report 2014 « —Z—[UFEFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBE(E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) $FTA(E)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when and only when the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified as loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables including bank balances and cash, pledged fixed
deposits, accounts receivable, loans receivable, other
receivables and deposits and statutory deposits are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows have been affected. Objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRTH(EZ)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
accounts receivable, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’'s original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or oss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other payables
and accrued expenses, and amount due to a Director are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XESHBE#E)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ¢WITA(E)

Derecognition HRUFHERR

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the EREERESREZ A LEREME - A&
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire. ErefRIERemEE -

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between ERIERASRHEER  BEERDERDK
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration REWREREMENEMEEBARER
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that 2R 2 25t EEENE5 - B8
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and T FER o

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, REEBENAEBR 2 &ETHER - sHiEsER
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. BRIEEREHAE KIEERZeHaE
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial BREERD M RENRBRESRE @ NIBRHE
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable o

is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION 4. A TFRERRZRZEERIR

UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, management has made the
following estimate that has a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The key
source of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, is discussed below.

BRIl AN B & 5T EHRRE - EE/E
BIELIA T HRE M BHRRCERALREK
BEAREZEEF - BEPKRBAHRERRE
BHTMEAFHRFEZEERABERAEEXRS
BZAATHEERFZNERIIR - R TGE

N
amg ©
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
annually and when facts and circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation asset may
exceed its recoverable amount.

The Group's determination of whether oil concession rights are
impaired requires an estimation of the future development of
the political and social environment in Egypt and the drilling
plan in the oil field. In previous years, the Group decided to
suspend its drilling plan in Egypt after considering the political
and social environment in Egypt and an impairment loss of
approximately HK$339,971,000 was recognised on oil
concession rights. The Group's carrying value of exploration
and evaluation assets in Egypt as at 31 December 2014 and
2013 was nil.

For assets under construction located in Tunisia, the Group
determined whether the related well costs are expensed if it is
determined that such economic viability is not attained within
the specific area after performing further feasibility studies that
is usually completed within one year of completion of drilling.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, an impairment loss
of approximately HK$294,000 (2013: HK$237,000) was
recognised on assets under construction. The Group's carrying
value of assets under construction as at 31 December 2014
was approximately HK$5,482,000 (2013: HK$5,776,000).

AT RERREZETERR(E)
BHRRETEERE

ST REEERERENBETORRME
EEABTEBLRATRELE  HRR
A RRATRERPA -

AEERBE BN TREESTRER
ABAREBUOAHEREZARER - UK
Az EREE c RBEFE - BEBRK
BOAH & IRIE K sl i FF AR & R RE R ORI (E
&5 18 49339,971,0008 1% - NE B R TE R
ERRRCEBERAS - R_F-—WER-F
—=Ft-A=1T—8 AEERERKkZH
REMGHEERAEDRE -

ERRERAL CEEEE - WNIEEH
B ARETTHE — R TR IE (— AR e Ak 8
BFER—FRTK)  DEREREBLEER
@ NEBERE RS AR K AT
X BEZT—NF+_A=+—HIF
£ - BRLTEEE E R B &5 18 49 294,000
BIL(ZZE—=4F :237,000/7L) c R=F
—NE+ZA=1+—R AEBEREEZ
AR T {8 49 55,482,000 (=& — = F :
5,776,000 L) °



Annual Report 2014 « —Z—[UFEFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-F

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets — mineral
mining rights

The recoverable amount of the mineral mining rights have
been determined based on value-in-use calculation. The value-
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the mineral mining rights
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The management refers to the valuation performed by
independent qualified valuers. In performing the valuation, the
valuers have based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates and assumptions. This estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of
the business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations. During the year ended
31 December 2014, no impairment loss (2013: nil) was
recognised in respect of the mineral mining rights.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the equity balance. The capital structure of the Group
consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated losses and other
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, issuance of new shares as well as the issuance of
new debts or the redemption of existing debts. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission and are required to comply
with the financial resources requirements according to the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the "SF(FR)R"). The Group’s regulated entities are subject to
minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. Management closely
monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid capital level of these
entities to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities
have complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SF(FR)R throughout both years.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

5.

6.

EXmBEE(E)

ETREERXBEESFMPEEBHERZ

SRE  AREBEEEZFME(FMERE
RR(TESEBE(FBER) KAL) E
SHBRERBRE - ARBXREERBET
ErLHE (MBER) R THRELERK
ARERRBDESHTE - EEEBRHET
NERZFEBORDESKFEAERES
HeBErMHE (MBER) RUNRERE
BEHE - AREXREEBNMEFEA
—HEATEFRAR(BRER) RAUNES
ME °

E@MTAH
SRT AR

Financial assets — loans and receivables £ a&E — SR EKEIE 353,164 382,388
Financial liabilities — amortised cost SRBE —#HEKER 216,293 171,784

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include bank balances and
cash, pledged fixed deposits, accounts receivable, loans
receivable, other receivables and deposits, statutory deposits,
accounts payable, other payables and accrued expenses and
amount due to a Director. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The Group's overall strategy substantially remains unchanged
from prior year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have other receivables
and deposits, pledged fixed deposits, bank balances, other
payables and amount due to a Director denominated in
currency other than functional currency of respective group
entities which exposed the Group to foreign currency risk. The
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
currently. However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in United States dollars
("US$") at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets
&E

2014

—Z—mF
HK$'000
FERT

Subsidiaries with functional &7t ([R7T 1) AIHEE

currency of Australian =i =N

dollars (“A$") 315
Subsidiaries with functional # 7T &Thae &~

currency of HK$ {hpEPNE 5,348

g A= ) 3
A= - IR NS

SRITHEE)
BREREEEERBE(Z)

5 LB
B8

RRRETH B R B A A EURR MR
& BEMEMER  ROTET  HMEM
B BN —REEHBENFHAEEETR
ZNEERIE  SAKEAZEERAR -
REE B AT EIMNEEIPER - AT - B
EeERINEELRR - WEREREBY
HERRINERE

AT BAREERRE MR AR EER
BEEMERAGENREE :

Liabilities

=V
2014
—E-NmEF
HK$'000
F#ET

2013
—ZT—=F
HK$'000
T

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
T

315 6,423

41,912 - =

Sensitivity analysis

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rates.

3
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86

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2013:
5%) increase and decrease in A$ against US$. 5% (2013: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used which represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss where A$ strengthen 5% (2013: 5%) against
US$. For a 5% weakening of A$ against the US$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss and the balances
below would be negative.

E@MTA(E)
BEEERRRBEK(E)

A
B¥m L (&)

BRE DT (F)
TR AE BRI H T BT R T ER5%
R F 5% ZHBEE 5% (ZF—=
F 1 5%) CBBRELRTIEEEHINEER
AREMAIEEE) 2 FHE - UREDITERR
DONESHEZ E¥IAR - YRFREHINE
ERZ5%(ZF—=%F :5%) EFHARHK
o AT 2 EBBERERITEET EF5%
—E-=F 5% B ZERED o HRT
HETTE5% HEEGERERREN
BlRzZFE  AmMATESKE/EEH -

Decrease in loss i SEi=VE R

305 305

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged fixed deposits, loans receivable. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate financial assets of bank balances, loans to
securities margin clients and amount due to a Director. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime
Rate arising from the Group's variable-rate loans to securities
margin clients and amount due to a Director.

T = 2 2
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loans to
securities margin clients and amount due to a Director
mentioned above at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and
liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2013: 50 basis
point) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point (2013: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$96,000 (2013:
HK$101,000).

The effect on bank balances has not been taken into account
in preparing the sensitivity analysis because the effect involved
is not significant.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

SRIA(E)
BEREREEEEREE(Z)

5 R (48)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group'’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration on bank balances as the Group
had placed the bank balances in several authorised institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Directors consider the credit risk of such
authorised institutions is low.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
accounts receivable and loans receivable, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis by
management and is reviewed monthly by the Directors. The
following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Py s

SRITHEE)
BREREEEEREE(Z)

mEBELEE (E)

Less than
1 month Total
Weighted and total carrying
average undiscounted amount at
effective cash flows 31.12.2014
interest rate SPR—EA R=Z-DNF
MEFH RAFBEEE +t=—A=t—H
BRA=E mEAE ZERHEAE
% per annum HK$'000 HK$'000
%BE FHET FExT
2014 —E-mE
Accounts payable T BRFR - 109,908 109,908
Other payables H A FE{T AR X - 19.416 19.416
Amount due to a Director BN —REEZIE 5% 86,969 86,969
216,293 216,293
Less than
1 month Total
Weighted and total carrying
average undiscounted amount at
effective cash flows 31.12.2013
interest rate PR—EH RIZT—=F
NEFEs EAFERE t-HA=1—H
BRI mERE ZIRHAE
% per annum HK$'000 HK$'000
% EFF FHET TAT
2013 —E—=F
Accounts payable FESRRFR - 93,219 93,219
Other payables H A R BREX = 12,687 12,687
Amount due to a Director EN—RZEEHIE 5.25% 65,878 65,878
171,784 171,784
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6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, no financial asset and
liability is carried at fair value.

REVENUE 7.

SRITHEE)
AP

CRMEENERABZATERAREER
AERNBRESRESNET - EFRAK
BYBHRERANLBEHENAINENEREER
TRABAEMNREEEEQFERS -

R-_E—NNER-_F—=F+—_fF=+—
B HEcHEENSHBBENATEARE-

Wz

HK$'000
FHTT
Sales of natural resources and RABRKRAICERIFE
petrochemicals 287,695 537,326
Commission and brokerage income e RELKA 16,592 16,815
Interest income arising from financial SREBELE ZFERA
business 6,447 5,673
Advisory and consultancy fee HEAEEE 2,393 3,072
313,127 562,886
OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 8. Hhsm=iEsig
2014
—E-NF
HK$°000
FET
Reversal of allowance for bad and R AT R 4 4 (o] 43
doubtful debts 1,443 6,305
Net exchange loss b B 18 55 (497) (78)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HeE—B ATz - 109
Gains on bargain purchase HEHE YU - 394
946 6,730
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the nature of the products provided and services
rendered.

The Group is currently organised into three reportable
segments — (1) trading business, (2) mineral mining, oil and
gas business and (3) financial business. These revenue streams
are the basis of the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors in
order to allocate resources to segments and to access their
performance.

Trading business — sales of natural resources and
petrochemicals

Mineral mining, oil — exploration and production of
and gas business mineral, oil and gas

Financial business — provision of financial services,
including stockbroking, futures
and options broking, mutual
funds, insurance-linked
investment plans and provision
of corporate financial services
and immigration consultancy
services, and securities margin
financing

AARBESE  ERLERRE - S
REDEEREFHEDERBAZER  hE
RRBPAIITHE G R TR T IRTS M EED

-

AEBE B AT =Er 2RO EAAARK — (1)
BEEE  QRE HREBARQ)SH
X - FRENBEESTS T HEHNBR
AREBERGAR 2 NERE 2 RMBEEE -
RAAHED BN ERMHEZD B ZRE

BHEG — HERRERRAL

P fn

BiE  mRELE — BY  ABERRAR
BRREE

TRET — RESRRE - B2
BRERL - BERY
R EEES
R R E 58I &
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PEERE)
Segment revenues and results DR RN EER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results ToARER DA RERZ DN °
by segment.
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZF—MmME+-F=+—HILFE

Reportable segments

A2/
Mineral
mining,
oil and gas
Trading business Financial
business g - business Consolidated
BE2ER R T SRER =a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
F#ExT FET FET F#ET
REVENUE g
Segment revenue par G 287,695 - 25,432 313,127
RESULTS E
Segment profit (10ss) SEREF (EE) 3,683 (4,641) 3,472 2,514

Corporate administration A&7 E B
Costs (41,988)

Loss before taxation %R E 1R (39,474)

92



Annual Report 2014 « —Z—[UFEFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NE+_A=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEER(E
Segment revenues and results (Continued) THEWBERESE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE—_E—=F+_H=1—HIFE

Reportable segments
A2®HER
Mineral
mining,
oil and gas

Trading business Financial
business s - business  Consolidated
B 5% R ZETS BRIZETS e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHETT FH&TT

REVENUE Wz
Segment revenue par G 537,326 - 25,560 562,886
RESULTS E
Segment profit (10ss) DB R (BE) 2,708 (2,698) 4,325 4,335

Corporate administration A &ITTEE A

costs (26,603)
Loss before taxation bREi AT E R (22,268)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the BSOS EEARSE @ﬁﬁﬂz%*ﬁ
same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment profit (loss) A o 58E%F (BB ETESRATITHE
represents the financial results by each segment without B2 iER T%ﬁ,ﬂ;ﬁZHﬁj‘%%ia ° LEm%%
allocation of corporate administration costs. This is the @Z2HER AN UHBEE R LT LK -

measure reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEER(E
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities THAREFEDEEERABEZ DI :

by segment:
At 31 December 2014 R-_E-—FE+—_F=+—H

Reportable segments

Gl |
Mineral
mining,
oil and gas
Trading business Financial
business PRUE - business Consolidated
BREK SRR FEK S REK wae
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F& T T T F& T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 340,059 9,774 207,824 557,657
Unallocated assets REIBEE 26,366
Consolidated total assets 4 & BE(E 584,023
LIABILITIES aE
Segment liabilities HEEE 2,069 9,603 113,325 124,997
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 93,878
Consolidated total liabilities 424 & (E42%8 218,875

94



Annual Report 2014 « —Z—[UFEFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (o

S AR REME 41

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PDEER (&
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEREE(E)

At 31 December 2013 R-E—=Ff+—-H=+—H
Reportable segments
G5
Mineral
mining,
oil and gas

Trading
business
B 5%
HK$'000

FHET

business
R -
R ZETS
HK$'000
T

Financial
business
TRIETS
HK$'000
FHETT

Consolidated
e
HK$'000
FH&TT

ASSETS BE

Segment assets DEEE 199,909 21,492 186,213 407,614
Unallocated assets REBEE 45,948
Consolidated total assets  4R&&E£E 453,562
LIABILITIES aE

Segment liabilities HEEE 11,625 10,189 162,702 184,516
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 6,226
Consolidated total liabilities 454 & (&48%8 190,742

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERDBRARDRERTSHOEMS :

allocating resources between segments:

BB —RIMB AR RN 2 T4  fE
AHAR 2 BITRERR S IAR B M
FHRAMEE (BELMEKER B
MRBERES)IN  HAAERHBT
LESHE -

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than o
deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary, bank
balances and cash for administrative purpose and other
assets including other receivables, prepayments and
deposits of head office.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other e FMBAGBESETEESE  HAA
payables and accrued expenses in relation to corporate THE R A i eI 508 K E T
administration costs. B -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEER(E
Other segment information HitpEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—_E—NFE+-_HA=1—HIFE
Reportable segments
AEHESE
Mineral
mining,
oil and gas
business
B -
HREK
HK$'000
TET

Financial

business Total

SREL &#

HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEx

Trading
business
COES
HK$'000

TEx

Unallocated Consolidated
RAE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx

Amounts included in the measure STESEER (BE) %
S8

96

of segment profit (10ss) or BEESAZEE:

segment assets:
Additions to fixed assets [ElE B EEAR 7,831 - 1 7,832 - 7,832
Goodwill mE 25,950 - - 25,950 - 25,950
Deposit paid for acquisition of Wi £ 255 AR A

land use rights 2% 137,456 - - 137,456 - 137,456
Deposit paid for acquisition of WE—RB AR

a subsidiary Pk - - - - 34,134 34,134
Impairment loss on exploration BRRGTEERESR

and evaluation assets - 294 - 294 - 294
Amortisation 3 - 2,402 - 2,402 - 2,402
Depreciation e 546 - 302 848 - 848
Reversal of allowance for RIG AR [ B

bad and doubtful debts - - (1,443) (1,443) - (1,443)
Finance costs BB ER - - 3,726 3,726 - 3,726
Interest income FEBHA (209) - (6,447) (6,656) (1) (6,657)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PDEER (&
Other segment information (Continued) HihpEER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE—_E—=F+_H=1—HIFE

Reportable segments
PEE v
Mineral
mining,
oil and gas

Trading business Financial

business business Total Unallocated Consolidated
EVES HEES/ SRER A RO e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THAT THET THAT TAT THAT

Amounts included in the measure of FENERT (1) %

segment profit (Iss) or segment assets: PEBEFAZESE
Additions to fixed assets EEEELR 100 - 199 299 1,064 1,363
Addition to exploration and BRREEE

evaluation assets N - 6,013 - 6,013 - 6,013
Addition to intangible assets EVEAEER - 12,012 - 12,012 - 12,012
Impairment loss on exploration HRREHEE

and evaluation assets EBE - 237 - 237 - 237
Amortisation By - 1,001 - 1,001 - 1,001
Depreciation TE 12 - 334 346 134 480
Reversal of allowance for bad REHREE

and doubtful debts 5] - = (6,305) (6,305) - (6,305)
Finance costs BBER - - 2257 2257 - 2257
Interest income FIEMA (56) - (5,673) (5,729) ) (5,738)
Geographical information i & & &
All of the activities of trading business are based in PRC and BHEE —UEHETRREREBET - £
Hong Kong. The activities of mineral mining are based in Kenya, BEHESEIETT  MMRERERK
while oil and gas business are based in Egypt, Tunisia and REFa X S EMETINEST - REFZ—
Madagascar. All of the activities of the financial business are Y EENEEBETT ©

based in Hong Kong.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
Geographical information (Continued)

The Group's revenue and its non-current assets, other than
deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary, statutory deposits
and loans receivable, by geographical location of the assets
regarding its operations are detailed below:

EER ()
R —MHBARXNZ TS  AERS

REWERS  REBIREEZ IR E S
DEHKEZWEFEIFEREEEFITMT

Revenue Non-current assets
[ ERBNEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F —B-HNFE —ZT—=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET FET FH&T
Hong Kong B 281,182 473,989 1,869 1,544
Tunisia e an - - 5,482 5,776
Kenya V=JI=CE] - = 8,609 11,011
PRC a2 31,945 88,897 170,065 90
313,127 562,886 186,025 18,421
Information about major customer FEEFZER

Revenue from customers of the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are all generated from trading business and as follows:

UTARE8Z_Z—NEFER_F—=F+=H
=+ —HULEFEMAEE LU A 10% 2 F7

Customer A B
Customer B BEZ,
Customer C EFR
Customer D BET

FEEBEFEB BRI
2014 2013
—E—mF —ET—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
255,750 222,867
- 187,372
- 58,020
31,945 =

There is no other single customer contributing over 10% of
total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

BE_ZT-—NMNEFR-_T—=F+-A=+—
BIEFE ITEEGE-FFERASEA
Wizs 10% LA £ ©
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. I BEH

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable  ZBR HEREE

within five years: ZBERE
Bank borrowings and bank overdrafts RITEERIBITESX 5 168
Amount due to a Director B —REEHIE 3,721 2,089
3,726 2,257
11. TAXATION 11. $i\E

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and SEBRELREMEEWESR TGRS

other comprehensive income represents:

—2-MF

HK$'000
FRET

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
T

Deferred tax —origination and reversal

of temporary difference & el

RIEHRIE —EREHEL

(721) (300)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as the relevant group
entities have no assessable profits or the assessable profit is
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

No PRC Enterprise Income Tax was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as the relevant group
entities incurred a loss for PRC Enterprise Income Tax purposes
for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating
in other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for both years.

HREBEE-_T—NEFR-_ZT—=F+=A
=T BUEFERBREEERSBRERTG
F - HZFERTE N D 2B AR T IEE
B MY ERZMEFETIREEFNE
R o

HRBPECEMSHEMNE @ BESEEE
REZE-_ZE—NFER=ZZE—=+=H
=+—BUEFEHEER  WUERZFE
HRP B EAEH -

REMBDARRES 2 BIRIZIAR f AR
BITHEFE - AR ERMRAIAEREE 2
B 8 B 0 % R B 4F 2 49 AT A FE AR B
F o I EE R E b RDARE R 2 RIS
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>>>>>>>

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. BB (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before FEBERGEBRRAEMEEKRR 2R
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and BB IRYENT -

other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation BRE AR (39,474) (22,268)
Taxation charge at the Hong Kong BB EHE16.5% T8

Profits Tax rate of 16.5% ZHmE (6,513) (3,674)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBUA

for tax purpose 2R E (1,158) (8495)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RIER TR TS B 18

not recognised IR 2 7,490 5,237
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2

for tax purpose 2GR 613 340
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss B A LRI AR EE

previously not recognised 2B (334) (1,225)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FAE b a4 & 45 & 2 i B A A

operating in other jurisdictions TRMERz & (819) (133)
Taxation for the year FEHIE (721) (300)
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FEEE

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAETT

Loss for the year has been arrived at FEBBEENR GTA)

after charging (crediting): T3 &I -
Auditor's remuneration IZ SN B 1,050 1,000
Amortisation oy 2,402 1,001
Depreciation e 848 480
Staff cost, including Directors'’ BEIRNAN(BREEZHE)

remuneration 34,123 28,438
Contributions to retirement benefits RNE R ET B R

scheme (included in staff costs) GTABIA) 685 582
Cost of inventories recognised EREAX 2 FERA

as expense 286,893 533,428
Gain from error trades thaR A Z W (2) )
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFE R BWA

(including in other income) (Gt AE MU A) (245) (65)
Operating lease in respect of office ERAMAEMEZ

premises KETRA 8,704 6,332

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 13. EERFETHRAEME

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

Lam Nam Ng Chen Kwan Total

Hui Neil Chui Kwok Kwok ChiKin  Wei-Ming Wang Wai A

Chi Ming Bush  Say Hoe Hing Lun David Eric Alan 2014
FEE EBeff HitH EEE EHfR ik [EL-L BLE —Z-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TET TET TER TER TET FET TER
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(FitE) (Ht&E) (KfaE)

Fees: e
Independent Non-Executive BAERTES

Directors - - - - - 50 50 50 150
Other emoluments to WTESZ A ME

Executive Directors:

Salaries and other benefits Lo REMmBETR 3,000 3,069 1,200 2,808 984 - - - 11,061

Contributions to retirement BRI B

benefits scheme 17 - - 17 17 - - - 51

Total remuneration e 3,017 3,069 1,200 2,825 1,001 50 50 50 11,262
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.

EENRFETHAEBME (E)

Lam Nam Ng Chen Kwan
Hui Nell Chui Kwok Kwok ChiKin  Wei-Ming  Wang Wai
ChiMing Bush Say Hoe Hing Lun David Eric Alan
HEE R AT el EEF i KR{EER BLR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHT TAL TAT TAL AT TAT
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(Cifa) (ifa) (i)
Fees: BE:
Independent Non-Executive BUFRTES
Directors - - - - - 50 50 50 150
Other emoluments to WTESZAME :
Executive Directors:
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,000 3074 1,200 2,808 984 - - - 11,066
Contributions to retirement RIERIE BT
benefits scheme 15 - 9 15 15 - - - 54
Total remuneration “Ee 3015 3,074 1,209 2,823 999 50 50 50 11,270

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments during the year (2013: nil).
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14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included three (2013: three) Directors of the Company for the
year, details of whose emoluments are included in note 13.
The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) individuals
were as follows:

14.

BEM<

REERN  AEBzhEHESFMA LRI
=H(CE=F: ZR)ARAESE  HF
RIS E N RE 13 - R (ZF—=4%F :
MBE) AL ZBEmT

2014
—E-NF

HK$°000
FH&xT

e REMEN
R ET IR

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme

3,880 3,483

17 15

3,897 3,498

The emoluments of two (2013: two) individuals with the highest
emolument are within the following band:

ME(ZE—=F: MB)BESFALZHE
NFTINBER

2014

—E—mF

No. of
Emoluments band individuals individuals
N
HK$1,500,000 to HK$ 1,999,999 1,500,000 7T £ 1,999,999 78 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,499,999 2,000,00078 7T £ 2,499,999 7 7T 1 -
2 2

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
above-mentioned individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

RAEFEEAR > AREHER DEA LM
ERME - ARSI E AT B S AR X
TERRERAR(E -
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15. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss for the year attributable to owners PG EGREREIE
of the Company for the purpose of

basic loss per share

15.

2

BRERE

AR RS AR S R EA B TE T8
B

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FETT

ARBEAARIEFEER

(37,756) (21,471)

Number of shares
BAEE

‘000

RN EBRERER
Z & BN 8

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic loss
per share

FK

1,518,628 1,458,914

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
presented for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share presented.

16. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2014, nor has any

dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2013: nil).
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17. FIXED ASSETS 17. BEEEE

Leasehold Computer Furniture Motor  Construction
improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles in process Total

HENEEE ERRE BRREE RE HEIR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THAT THET T BT T

COST R

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—F—H 1,212 5,178 1,582 2,132 = 10,104
Additions R 33 408 155 767 = 1,363
Disposals & = - - (2,132) - 2,132)
Exchange adjustment BN A% = 2 - - - 2
At 31 December 2013 R=E-=%f+-A=1+-H 1,245 5,588 1,737 767 = 9337
Additions b 204 180 30 724 - 1,138
Acquisition of a subsidiary g —R B AE - 3% - 327 6,331 6,694
Disposals HE (230) - = = - (230)
Exchange adjustment I 5 AR = (@ - (] 83) o1
At 31 December 2014 RZF-MEF=A=1—H 1,219 5800 1,767 1,814 6,248 16,848
DEPRECIATION &

At 1 January 2013 RZE—-=%4—-F—H 1,086 4,639 1,498 2132 - 9,355
Provided for the year FERE 70 238 44 128 - 4830
Written off on disposal HEM B - - - 2,132) - 2,132
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=4+-A=+-H 1,156 4,877 1,542 128 - 7,703
Provided for the year FERE 109 337 57 345 - 848
Written off on disposal S (230) - - - - (230)
Exchange adjustment TE 5 A% = 0] - - _ 0]
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-NF+-A=+—H 1,035 5213 1,599 473 - 8,320
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2014 R-F-NE+-A=1+—H 184 587 168 1,341 6,248 8,528
At 31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=A=+—H 8 711 195 639 - 1,634
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the WEHGERUTERSZ -

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%-33"/3% =R E 2 20%-33/-%
Computer equipment 20%-50% E B 20%-50%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-40% REREE 20%-40%
Motor vehicles 20%-30% EE 20%-30%
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Mineral Trading
mining rights rights Total
g RAE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT T FHET
cosT R
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—H—H = 50 50
Acquisition of a subsidiary I B8 — R B B A 7 12,012 - 12,012
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F+-A=+—HEK
31 December 2014 —E-NHFE+HA=+—~H 12,012 50 12,062
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H = 50 50
Provided for the year FERME 1,001 = 1,001
At 31 December 2013 R-EBE—=%+_-_A=+—H 1,001 50 1,051
Provided for the year FERE 2,402 = 2,402
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WFE+=-A=+—8” 3,403 50 3,453
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+_-_A=+—H 8,609 — 8,609
At 31 December 2013 R=ZZE—=F+=-HA=+—H 11,011 = 11,011
Trading rights represent two trading rights in the Stock RGEERBRFAZMEARXSERBEBRER
Exchange and one trading right in Hong Kong Futures Exchange SMERAF 2 —EARZHE - XSHEENF
Limited. Trading rights were amortised over nine years. BEE o
Mineral mining rights represented the rights granted under the R R EER S B FE 253 ESR 2 F
Licence 253 in respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of 253RFAFAI B 2R - ZESLNETE
approximately 1,056 square kilometers situated in Kitui District op 5 30 44 JE 42 g8 #f [& (Kitui District Eastern
Eastern Province, Kenya. Mineral mining rights arising the Province) * E& 41,056 F 75 A 8 o WY
acquisition of subsidiaries as set out in note 37 and were &R EIEE 2 FRERE AR I7A -
amortised over five years. hEH o
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19. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 19. BV R R LT EE
Assets (o]]|
under- concession

construction rights
(Note a) (Note b)

EREE
(FtzEa)
HK$'000

TAET

BmERT

RemE
(&£ D) CES
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

COST AND CARRYING VALUES M7 EEEE
At 1 January 2013 R-—ZE—=%—H—H - = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries I HEHT B A A 6,013 - 6,013
Impairment loss B (237) = (237)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+HA=1+—H8K

1 January 2014 —ZE—mE—HF—H 5,776 - 5,776
Impairment loss REEE (294) = (294)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—WNFE+_-_A=1+—H 5,482 - 5,482

Notes:

(a) Assets under construction presented the cost of various kinds of oil
drilling and production equipment located in Ksar Hadada, Tunisia, from
the acquisition of subsidiaries as set out in note 37. As at 31 December
2014, the Group carried out an impairment review for the exploration and
evaluation assets in Tunisia. An impairment loss of approximately
HK$294,000 (2013: HK$237,000 ) was recognised in profit or l0ss in
relation to the exploration and evaluation assets in Tunisia.

(b) Qil concession rights represented rights given by the Egyptian
government in relation to exploration and extraction in 100% of oil field of
Block 2 West Esh El Mallaha in Egypt (“Block 2”). Due to the unstable
political and social environment in Egypt, there was no substantive
expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
being incurred since 2011. As a result, the entire oil concession rights of
HK$339,791,000 was fully impaired in previous year. During the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the political and social environment
in Egypt is still unable and the Group suspended the development in
Egypt until the political environment becomes more stable.

QAP FE 37 FTE - R A ETRIR B W BB A Bl AL
7 28 JE 78 22 Ksar Hadada &1 £ i 38 5 & 4 EE =%
BZRA - R=ZT—NFE+=A=+—8 " A&
B ¥R BT 2 MR R Gt A E BRI TR AR
MEEADZMRERGTEERBEFERL
294,000 0 (= Z — =4 : 237,000/ L) 2 R fE
&1 ©

R RT AR R R R BT B Eh R R R IR K
West Esh El Mallaha = [& 2 2B5s A ([ —Esam )
B 2 R - AR RBUA R IRIBEE - i
BT —FRUERE - THRRTERAE
TREEEMERZE - Fit - 49339,791,000% 7T
ZEHEBETREERENBEFERERE - B
HE_T-NER-_T—=F+-_A=+—Hi
FE - BRRBARMERBMATIRE « tHAE
EEBERERZER BEERARREBRER
JJ: °
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20. GOODWILL

21.

The goodwill is generated from the major acquisition
transactions for acquiring 65% equity interest of Beibuwan
Yuchai Energy Chemicals Co., Limited (“Beibuwan Energy”)
which has been completed on 7 March 2014. Beibuwan Energy
is applying a port of land located in Qinzhou Guangxi and will
engage in manufacturing and trading of petrochemical
products.

20. B8

FEFNR _E—HF=AtHTKRZETER
BR5 HRREILEEEREREIAR
REN([EEREREIR ) 2 65% Big - 1L &P AL
IR IER — RN BNz L - B
BREAERBENRE HER

The Group REE
2014
—F-ImEF
HK$'000
FET

COST: RN :

At 1 January m—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary ELXEWE—HHBA 26,082
Exchange difference HEH =58 (132)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 25,950

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of
approximately HK$25,950,000 has been allocated to a individual
cash generating unit (CGU), comprising a subsidiary in trading
business. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Directors determines that there are no impairments of
goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budget approved by the
Directors covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of
11.89%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.5% growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the expected inflation rate in PRC. The Directors
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
CGU.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
LAND USE RIGHTS

The deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights represented
the consideration paid by Beibuwan Energy to obtain land use
rights at Qinzhou Petrochemical Industrial Park, Qinzhou Port,
Guangxi with total area of approximately 2,100 mu, of which
1,873 mu will be used for production while the remaining area
will be used for storage.
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22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22, EEFIBEEE
The following is deferred tax liabilities recognised and RTRREBE_ZE—NF+=-A=1+—H1t
movements thereon during the year ended 31 December 2014: EERAECHEBGRAES
Mineral
mining rights
PRUERE
HK$'000
FHTT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H =
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE BT B A 7] 3,603
Credit to profit or loss BB (300)
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—ME—H—H 3,303
Credit to profit or loss BAE R (727)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WF+=-RA=+—H 2,582
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated REEEKRE » NEEE BN A REFL
unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences in ERE AN B ER K R B E R R B) A ET A
relation to exploration and evaluation assets other than oil FSEE R Al NF T =585 B 49 102,322,000
concession rights of approximately HK$102,322,000 (2013: B ( =T — = 4 : 63,647,000 7T ) &
HK$63,647,000) and HK$100,950,000 (2013: HK$100,950,000) 100,950,000 7T ( =& — = £ : 100,950,000
respectively available for offset against future profits. No P IT) AT K S R B ) o R A A AT BE
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such FEERRF A AR R BB R RSB & ]
unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences as it is MRS ZEZ%E > WITER KB REE
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which BR AT R EZREERRERBEE - &
the unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences TS E ] ER Hig e o
can be utilised. Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
23. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 23. FERE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Deposits with: TR T AREZ IR -
The Stock Exchange B 22 B 275 275
The Securities and Futures Commission  BA5 RS EKEREE® 2,100 2,100
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEPREZEBR AR
Company Limited (“HKSCC") ([BBEHE]D 200 200
Reserve Fund Contribution to Hong Kong &S HEAE 45 E AR A A
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation  ([BEEIE&E )
Limited (“HKFECC") ZidmedtiK 1,550 1,532
4,125 4,107
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Fixed-rate loans receivable

Uee E% B THE

24.

PR E K

2014
—E-NF

HK$°000
F#&xT

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FETT

denominated in functional BE B K E R

currency of Hong Kong dollars 2,733 822
Carrying amount analysed ARmEZREE

for reporting purposes: DT
Current assets (receivable MEVEE (A BmE

within 12 months from BB+ =E AR

the end of the reporting period) U EY ) 2,445 416
Non-current assets (receivable EREBEE (AT ERE

after 12 months from the end L BRET =@ A%

of the reporting period) UTER) 288 406

2,733 822

The fixed-rate loans receivable have contractual maturity dates
as follows:

—E-mE —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTEx FAT

Matured within 1 year —FEANEH 2,445 416
Matured within 1 year and 2 years —FEWMFNEIE 130 137
Matured within 2 years and 3 years ME 2 = F N E|H 119 111
Matured within 3 years and 4 years = FEYF A EH] 39 119
Matured within 4 years and 5 years MEERFAEIE - 39
2,733 822
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 24. ERER (&)

Loans receivable with a carrying value of approximately
HK$2,380,000 (2013: HK$468,000) is secured by a property
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the property in the absence of default by the
customer.

The effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group's loans receivable ranged from 5%
to 7% per annum (2013: 5.25% to 7%). Interest rate term is
fixed at the time when entering into loan agreement. The
periods of the loans ranged from 1 year to 8 years.

In determining recoverability of the loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in credit quality of the borrowers from
the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period. Loans receivable with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,461,000 (2013: HK$563,000) are neither
past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group believes that the amounts are with good
credit quality. Therefore, no provision is considered necessary.

Loans receivable with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$272,000 (2013: HK$259,000) are past due as at the reporting
date but not impaired, as the Group considered the amount is
still recoverable and therefore no provision is considered
necessary.

Loans receivable with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$NIl (2013: HK$9,000) are impaired as the Group considered
the amount become uncollectible.

Bk H B 492,380,000/ T( Z & — = F:
468,000/ 7T ) 2 FE W E KA B B Y E1E K
e BPYEBRERBERT  AEE AT
HEXBERBZYE -

AEBRKER ZEEREFNE(ZRAHNR)
REESUETIR(ZZT—=%F : 5.25%%7%) °
MR AR T L BRI A EE - BN

F—FENE -

REEERBERAEKRER AEESER
BRABVRELEEAREEZ RE K
BREEEZFES L - RIEHKAE &
E{E#1 2,461,000 7T (=& —=4F : 563,000
L) Z FEWE R K BEIRARRE © fA
SEBEEHEFIBEEEERRL - AtRA
HAVEH B

Bk M 18 49272,000% T( = T — = F:
259,000787T) 2 FEWE R & A HiC A
BARBE  ARANEERSZRBD AR
B - MRRBAELEE -

FREEANTET(ZF— =% :9,000/&7T)
ZEWERERE  RER/AEERRZK
HEARME -
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25. FEUWRBRRK
2014
—E-NF
HK$°000
FET
Accounts receivable consist of: FEWEERBIETHIIEE ¢
Accounts receivable arising from AAEBEREAILERE S
business of trading natural resource FiTEE A4 2 FEM AR 3K
and petrochemical 1,162 13,220
Accounts receivable arising from the BEEBHEBIEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEURBRFX
— Cash clients —HERP 33,189 31,623
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts R REREHE (502) (1,945)
32,687 29,678
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing — ABRREEERAF
Company Limited (“HKSCC") ([BAB&EE]) 3,256 4,108
Accounts receivable from Hong Kong BEESNERTES
Futures Exchange Clearing ZIEWEBHEEERR AR
Corporation Limited (“HKFECC") (TBEEHEEE ) RX
arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts 2,805 2,758
Loans to securities margin clients BTEHRBEREPZEN 67,911 45,788
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts HIBR © REREEHE (91) (39)
67,820 45,749
Accounts receivable arising from the S ER B RESES
business of advisory for financial 2 FEU AR X
management 680 1,863
108,410 97,376

An average credit period for accounts receivable from trading
business is 30 days. The accounts receivable from trading of
natural resources and petrochemicals aged within 90 days.
Included in the accounts receivable from business of trading
natural resource and petrochemical is HK$1,162,000 (2013:
HK$1,023,000) which is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 25. EWERFX (&)

The settlement terms of accounts receivable from cash clients,
HKSCC and HKFECC are usually one to two days after the trade
date. Except for the accounts receivable from cash clients as
mentioned below, the accounts receivable from HKSCC and
HKFECC aged within 30 days.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

Loans to securities margin clients are repayable on demand and
bear interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang
Bank Limited plus 3% equivalent to 8.25% per annum for both
years. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.
The loans are secured by pledged marketable securities at fair
value of approximately HK$215,070,000 (2013: HK$183,254,000).
The average percentage of collateral over the outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2014 is ranged from 101% to 5263%
(2013: 103% to 3870%). The fair value of pledged marketable
securities of the individual margin clients is higher than the
corresponding outstanding loans. The Group is permitted to sell
or repledge the marketable securities if the customer default the
payment as requested by the Group. The Group had provided
the allowance for doubtful debts for securities margin clients
with reference to the portfolio held and the subsequent
settlement of each customer.

RegF BRRAEMNEAHERAERITR
R BEYRBERRZARE—EMA -
B NPT EUCR & R PRRRIN - BIRER
REMNBERELERA ZREKHR30A
A o

BAREEE B HOE R ITHEN IR B A 2RI
BUFEREL LRI EINESE - K&
B g HEIHE T RKERR R ETRR

BTEFREBESEP CERENERKEE
R XZHRITHR R B THRE S REZF X
HN3% (7 & 5 & ¥9 #8055 70 4 F1| £ 8.25% ) &1
B -EBE2RE ARERROIMIEEESR - A
W ERBERE DT EXUAAFED
215,070,000 7% 7T (=& — = £ : 183,254,000
BIL) 2BEERRBESEER RZT
—OFEF+ZA=+—H ' REEHHK 2 EH
mZFEHBE DN F101%E5263% (==
— =1 : 103% =3870%) ° ARIREELEF
ZERBERBESZ AFESNEERER
ER o AEBRBERE PR AN EBAERK
RERLNEXFERRAERES - AKEEZ
EEBHFREBESEPFEAECREHEG AR
HEEMRR - ABEHFRBSREFFHRREEE -
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The Group does not provide any credit term to its advisory for
financial management clients. The aged analysis of accounts
receivable arising from the business of advisory for financial
management clients is as follow:

Accounts receivable from the business of
advisory for financial management clients

25. BRI (&)

AREEN EFAP B EIERAEB TP RHIE
AEEH MBEREAXRGEPELZE
Wk Rz Bl DATAR T

MBREERFARBEEF 2 BWIRR

2014
—E-—mE

HK$'000
FET

0-90 days 0£9H
More than 90 days 90 HIA Lk

330 1,603
350 260

680 1,863

The settlement terms of cash clients are usually one to two
days after the trade date. The aged analysis of accounts
receivable arising from cash clients is as follows:

Accounts receivable from cash clients

ReRPAEHETE R AHE—E/M
H - ReFPESZRBRRZ Rk o T
™

BURREEF RN

2013
—E—=F

HK$'000
TAT

0-90 days 0£90H 31,303 28,135
91-180 days 91%180H 1,384 1,543
32,687 29,678
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 25. EWBRFR (&)
Accounts receivable from cash clients EWEEEFRIN(Z)
(Continued)
The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying RI|EERH - BREE L A 15,359,000 7T
amount of approximately HK$15,359,000 (2013: HK$23,397,000) (ZZ— =4 :23,397,000/870) Z FEWIR &
are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting BERKCEBHEARBRE - ®EERE R
period. The average age of the amount past due but not BREZEHERABAAN(ZE—=
impaired is within 30 days (2013: within 30 days). In the opinion 0HA) - EZLEREHKRBBCERLE
of the Directors, no significant accounts receivable from BEERRE RZE—NFEFR_ZT—=4F
advisory for financial management clients and cash clients are +ZA=+—"HB WERKIKEIEZANE
impaired at 31 December 2014 and 2013 with reference to the BEPNIAERE 7EABRRERIE
subsequent settlement received after the end of the reporting
period.
Movement in the allowance for doubtful ReEFRRBE22H

debts of cash clients

Balance at beginning of the year F)EEek 1,945 3,070
Amounts recovered during the year AEEWE S5 (1,443) (1,125)
Balance at end of the year FIR R 502 1,945
Movement in the allowance for doubtful BRREFESEFRARBHEZEE

debts of securities margin clients

2014 2013

=F-mE T =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Balance at beginning of the year FANEERR 39 5,228
Impairment losses recognised FEMGRIE R B S 1R TR

on receivables 52 3

Amounts recovered during the year REZWE S EE - (5,192)

Balance at end of the year FIREERR 91 39
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25.

26.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts of cash clients and
securities margin clients are individually impaired accounts
receivable due from clients who have been in severe financial
difficulties. For the securities margin clients, the amount was
arrived at after considering the proceeds from disposal of
respective pledged marketable securities held by the Group.

In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
accounts receivable from the date credit was initially granted,
subsequent settlement and the fair value of pledged
marketable securities up to the reporting date. In the opinion
of the Directors, there is no further credit provision required in
excess of existing allowance for doubtful debtors.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND
DEPOSITS

25. BRI (&)

ReBFPRkEFRBESREPREREEERE
W—EEHEEVRRE TS Z BT
BERKER - BFRESTPBBRIEE
BHEAREMFHEBCSRRRBRES M
BHRARERE -

RETEREERAERER  AEESER
HARLEEANEEERE AL 2 -
WEEREEE R  HREFENR R EFR
BREFZATFEZEMNE L EFERS R
R BAEHRRBEAINE— S EERE -

26. HttEWERR - ENRIERRS

2014 2013

—B-mOFE —T-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Other receivables HoAth FE U BR 5K 25,809 275

Amounts due from non-controlling FE W IR AR HE 25 5RIE

interests (note a) (ftzEa) 11,393 11,393

Rental and other deposits HekEfize 2,252 2,803

Prepayments TE IR 6,287 5,031
Advance to suppliers arising from HE 5 E Mt e R

trading business 31,000 52,753

76,741 72,255

Note:

(a) Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest free
and recoverable on demand. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, included
in the amount, approximately HK$11,393,000 was denominated in US$, a
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
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27. PLEDGED FIXED DEPOSITS, BANK 27. CEAEHER RITEEK

BALANCES AND CASH
Pledged fixed deposits (general accounts)

The pledged fixed deposits represented the amounts pledged
to banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. The pledged fixed deposits carry interest rates at
0.225% (2013: 0.020% to 0.225%) per annum and will be
released upon the expiry of the relevant banking facilities.
Included in pledged fixed deposits (general accounts) is
approximately HK$5,204,000 (2013: HK$5,193,000) which is
denominated in US$, a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity.

Bank balances (trust and segregated
accounts)

From the Group's ordinary business, it receives and holds
money deposited by clients in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities. These clients” monies are maintained in
one or more segregated bank accounts and bear prevailing
market deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.15% (2013: 0.01%
to 0.15%) per annum. The Group has recognised the
corresponding accounts payable to respective clients.
However, the Group does not have a currently enforceable
right to offset those payables with the deposits placed.

Bank balances (general accounts) and cash

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates at 0.01%
(2013: 0.01%) per annum with an original maturity of three
months or less. Included in bank balances (general accounts)
and cash are approximately HK$5,451,000 (2013:
HK$30,257,000) and HK$72,000 (2013: HK$58,000) and which
are denominated in US$ and RMB respectively, a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

BE
EEAEBER(—RERF)

BRI E g REVS A B — R IRTTRE
EMmERITIEL 2 KIS EE - EEME T
K2 REFF025% (=T — = F:
0.020% %= 0.225%) * A A BARTTRL & B Btk
BEER o STAE BB ERER(—RER) 24
5,204,000/ 7L ( —ZZ—=4F : 5,193,000/ T)
LERRA S E TR 2 e S ELIE o

RITEF (EERBALRF)

REER B FEBETXEE/EBMUKEL
BERPZER - ZERFP 2 REEFA—E
5% Z (BIBL ER 1T BR P W IRIR 1T Th 3517 30 FI R
NFEF001%ZE0.15%(=ZF—=:0.01%
E0.15%):T 8 - AEEHRRAENEERER 2
FEFERRIR AT + AL EIR W E AT 1 T4E
S TF IR Z SRR SR o

RITEEF (—RERF)REE

e EBREASEFE 2 Re RIFRITMS
FRAEFE001%(ZF— =4 :001%)
B AREHA A =@ AT ZEHIRTT
ik o st ARITET (—REER) RIRE 24
5,451,000% 7t ( = F — = 4F : 30,257,000
J0) 272,000/ 7T (= ZF—=4F : 58,000/ L)
ARIAEEESEEE R e EEETRA
EEIIE -
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28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

28. FE{TBRFX

2014 2013
—E—mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Accounts payable arising from the BE RS EBATEEEMNERN
business of dealing in securities:
— Cash clients —HERE 94,093 80,276
— HKSCC — BBGEE 2,869 1,368
Accounts payable to clients arising BEESNER
from the business of dealing in FEAZENEP
futures contracts BRFK 5,023 5,236
Amounts due to securities margin clients JEf B HFREB S E P I8 7,923 6,339
109,908 93,219

The settlement term of accounts payable to cash clients and
HKSCC is two days after the trade date and aged within 30
days.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received from
clients for their tradings of futures contracts on HKFECC. The
excess of the outstanding amounts over the required margin
deposits stipulated by HKFECC are repayable to clients on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

The accounts payable amounting to approximately
HK$88,636,000 (2013: HK$75,199,000) were payable to clients
or other institutions in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not
have a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 29. HiWEN R R EFTE A
EXPENSES
2014 2013
=EF-mFE T =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other payables Hfh NS RIE 6,977 8,805
Accrued expenses FEFTE 12,439 10,572
Receipts in advance from B 55 7% 2 TAWGRIE
trading business - 8,965
19,416 28,342
30. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 30. BEf—REERE
Amount due to a Director is unsecured, interest bearing at BN —BESFHIELEER - EKFRITH
Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited BHNEEREBENE(ZZE—=F: kFR
(2013: Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank THRENEARKEBENER)BFHERERE
Limited) per annum and are repayable on demand. ZRERE -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. IgkAK

Number of shares
BAEE

HK$'000
T FH

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each  &RXE{E0.1078 T 2 L& iA@A%

Authorised: TEE
At 31 December 2013 and 2014 RIE—=FR_ZT—NF
+—-—HA=+—8H 10,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: EZETRHE -
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—HF—H 1,456,844 145,684
Share repurchased and R&in B [l M sk 88 (Mt a)

cancelled (note a) (740) (74)
Issued on 6 December 2013 RoZE—=E+=RH/,NA3%57

(note b) (KtiEb) 32,000 3,200
At 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-HA=+—H 1,488,104 148,810
Share repurchased and R fnBE El K sx s (M atc)

cancelled (note ¢) (23,252) (2,325)
Exercised of share option (note d) 73 {EEERR#E (Fti+d) 30,000 3,000
Issued in consideration for EBWEREMETT (Hite)

the acquisition (note e) 19,426 1,943
Issued in consideration for EBNEREBmMEETT (K1)

the acquisition (note f) 29,174 2,917
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NME+-_A=+—H 1,543,452 154,345
Notes: B -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company repurchased its (@) HE-ZT—=F1T-A=1T—HILLFE  ~xR7E

own shares through the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows: BEBBMERXSMARAFERERSRMHIT

No. of ordinary

shares of Aggregate
HK$0.10 each consideration
Month of repurchase SREEO0.10E T Price per share paid
BBE A5 ZEBREAE SRER B ERE
Highest Lowest
B= BIE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
; B TT FAT
November 2013 —T—=%+—A 740,000 1.45 1.39 1,031
The above shares were cancelled on 29 November 2013. EBROER=T—=F+—A=T I BFH -
None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of FRN - ARRSHEAREERA - HEXER
the Company's listed securities during the year. AR REMR _ETES ©
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to 2 subscription agreements dated 21 November 2013 entered
into between Mr. Chen Weiwen, Mr. Fan Chun Sing (“Subscribers”) and
the Company, Subscribers subscribed for 32,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 in the Company at a price of HK$1.42 per share. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2013. All
the issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in
issue.

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

No. of ordinary
shares of
HK$0.10 each
SRMEEO0.10#E T
ZEBREE

Month of repurchase

e A 6

April 2014 —ZE—FmA 15,004,000
May 2014 —E—NFERA 7,748,000
July 2014 —E-mELA 500,000
November 2014* —E-mE+—R* 40,000
December 2014* —E—NFEF+ZA* 8,810,000

31. RAR (&

Bz

Highest

(%)

REBERE T ERERELEE ([RBEAD EBAR
AT BEHAR T —=F+—A-+—HZM
DRE MR - REARER142B T2 EBERE
32,000,000 8 A2 B AR EIEO. 1078 7T 2 #T AR ©
FZEHROTRER =T —=FA=-++LBR
ARZARRBRRBFRGRTEEZ —RIERE
M7 - BB BRTROAER T EEEMEHTT
B = A REf -

FR ARRBEEEBERXZMARARER
HARGRMHMT

Aggregate
consideration
paid
EfERE

Price per share
BRER
Lowest

HK$'000
FHET

1.88 1.54 26,052
1.56 1.19 10,733
1.03 1.00 509
1.03 1.03 41
1.04 0.94 8,766

The above shares were cancelled during the period (except those
repurchased in November and December).

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

W The shares repurchased during November and December have not
been cancelled.

On January 2014, a total of 30,000,000 share option was exercised at an
exercise price of HK$1.38 per share, and a total of 30,000,000 shares was
issued with aggregated nominal value of HK$3,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has issued
19,426,624 ordinary shares at price of HK$2.14 each for acquiring 65%
equity interest of a Beibuwan Energy.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has issued
29,174,365 ordinary shares at price of HK$1.17 each for acquiring 55%
equity interest of Hebei Panbao.

FREHERARNEHE(ERT—ART=AB
BIEERSN)

FR - ARBEMBRRMERA  HEXRER
AR BUES ] EHES

* R+—AR+ = ABEZBEH MAREH o

R=ZF—MF— A » A £30,000,00017 & f& #E 4z
THEEESRISB TETE  RLBTEL
30,000,000 A& P& {5 + 42 {E.4 3,000,000 7T °

HE_Z-ME+-_A=1+—BILtFE  AAF
54 Uk B A 3672 8RR 2 65% AR R T A% 2.1478 T
ZAEMREE1T 19,426,624 B A% -

RE-T-MFE+-A=+—ALEE FAF

E Rt UL 28 2 55% IR ER1.17 8 T2
B8 3577 29,174,365 B & F A% o
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32.

The details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that
have material non-controlling interests shown as below:

FEE RS

BEEHERES  ARBIZENBR
BZFHBEIIRMT -

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
principal and voting rights held Loss allocated to
place of by non-controlling non-controlling Accumulated
Name of business interests interests non-controlling
Subsidiary SEM AR S b8 FEREZFEZ BT I ERER interests
il PACIEE TEEXME R RIRERELA 2B Rt R R
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
—E-mFE =—T—=F Z—T-NF T—= —E-OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FERT FAT
Aminex Petroleum Egypt BVI/Egypt
Limited (“APEL") HKBERLHS BER
Aminex Petroleum Egypt
Limited ([APEL) 40% 40% - (80) (43,573) (43,573)
China Yuchai Hoifu Energy BVI/Hong Kong
International Limited KBELZHS B
(“China Yuchai”)
PR E L = aE R B
BRAR (TFHEELE]) 49% 49% (6) M 11,387 11,393
Beibuwan Yuchai Energy PRC/PRC
Chemical Co., Ltd. FE,
("Beibuwan Energy”)
JbEpE R LAER{ET
ARAR (T1EEERER]) 35% = (82) = 73,871 -
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BRERERZ
ERIZEE KK B R R (1,886) (416) 3,178 4,088
(1,974) (497) 44,863 (28,092)
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 32. JE#ZERR iz (&)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the EEEEAERERSZAEBRSHEA
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests BZBMEMEEREHINT o LA N EE 1%
are set out below. The summarised financial information below AR AEB AN RIEEER Z EEE o

represented amounts before intragroup eliminations.
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

China Yuchai Beibuwan Energy
APEL HE R4 I ERERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

SE-NF _T-=F SF-0F —F-=F SF-0OF - =
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TEr  TEx  TAT  TER  TERT

Non-current assets ERBEE - - - - 143,947 -
Current assets REEE 4,360 4,360 23,250 23,250 68,696 -
Current liabilities mENBE (113,292) (113,292 (14) ) (1,583) =

(108,932)  (108,932) 23,236 23,248 211,060 =

Equity attributable to VNG 2SN
owners of the Company FEfEHE R (65,359)  (65359) 11,849 11,855 137,189 -
Non-controlling interest FEIE RIS (43,573)  (43573) 11,387 11,393 73,871 -

(108,932)  (108,932) 23,236 23248 211,060 =
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 32. JE#ZERR iz (&)

For the year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE

China Yuchai Beibuwan Energy
APEL HE R4 L EPERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE-NFE —F—=F ZE-NOF _T—=F ZE-NF —_T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHxT FHET TRx FHBT TRx T

Revenue Wz - - - - - -
Other income Hpdg A - - - - 399 =
Expenses gt - (199) (12) ) (633) =
Loss for the year FEEE - (199) (12) V) (234) =

Other comprehensive expenses 4 & £ th 2 [ 37
for the year - = - - - _

Total comprehensive expenses FE 2 M H 4258

for the year - (199) (12) ) (234) =
Loss attributable to: FEIGE1E

owners of the Company VN/NETEZ Z =N - (119) (6) Q) (152) =

Non-controlling interests IR M 2 - (80) (6) (1) (82) -

- (199) (12) ) (234) -

Total comprehensive expenses & 2 E % H 848

attributable to:

Owners of the Company V/NEIEZ =N - (119) (6) Q) (152) =

Non-controlling interests FEE R - (80) (6) @ (82) -

- (199) (12) ) (234) =

Dividend paid to B IR ER

non-controlling interests ds) - = - = - -
Net cash inflow from: REUTEEZ

BemNFE :

operating activities KEES) - = (12)  (23250) 33,209 =

investing activities REEE - = - = (25) =

financing activities BB EE - - 12 23,250 - -
Net cash inflow RemAFE - = - - 33184 =
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33. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises
which fall due as follows:

gy N

33. KERAN
AEBEREEA
RBEHKE  AEBARBEENEZT

AEHEEHEY - £ N IIHEX I ARRKE
B

2014 2013

—EB-mFE  —F=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year —F R 5,612 6,043
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERE(BEEEMS) 1,411 2,424
7,023 8,467

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease term.

REBOFBEAEERRAEVERNZ
HE - MOERIZFOMFREER - MEH
RNZELEE e
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EREIE

According to the concession agreement signed by a subsidiary
of the Group, Aminex Petroleum Egypt Limited (“APEL"), on 17
September 2006 regarding the exploration of Block 2, APEL is
committed to the Egyptian government to spend at least
US$7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$54,600,000) to drill three wells
in the initial three years (i.e. on or before September 2009). As
at 31 December 2009, the committed amount in the initial
three years was spent and three wells were drilled. After that
and as a second phase of the concession agreement, APEL
should spend at least US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$39,000,000) to drill two wells in the subsequent three years
(i.e. on or before September 2012). However, the drilling of two
wells has not been started. On 13 September 2012, the
Egyptian government granted an approval to allow the Group
to extend the second phase of the concession agreement
including the drilling of the two wells to 16 March 2013. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group submitted a
letter to the Egyptian regulatory authorities to further extend
the second phase of the concession agreement. Approval still
had not been granted by the Egyptian government up to the
date of these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue. The Directors consider that there is
chance the Egyptian government will grant extension of the
second phase of the concession agreement. When the second
phase of the concession agreement is completed, APEL should
spend at least US$4,000,000 (equivalent to HK$31,200,000) to
drill another two wells in the last two years. The excess amount
used in the first stage can be subtracted to the minimum
amount committed set out in the second or/and third stage. As
at 31 December 2013, APEL had spent more than the total
committed amount of US$16,000,000 (as equivalent to
HK$124,800,000) and had drilled three wells in Block 2. As at 31
December 2014, the remaining commitment for exploration of
Block 2 is the drilling of four wells as mentioned above.
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R & K £ & [ B 2 7 Aminex Petroleum
Egypt Limited (APEL]) R =ZZZF S F N A
TEEETH R AENERSTEEH®E
APELMAIR R BN EBERBE=F (IR =EF
NENAKZ A FEZE 47,000,000 7T (48
H 754,600,000 7T ) B = Ol HF - R
TENGE+A=1T—RH E=FF#E2S
BMEARER= R - ImBEFE 2
B PR APELEB=F (IR =T —=—%F
LA Z A1) B /K& E 25,000,000 7T (48
& 139,000,000 7 7T ) R /W E R FF o AT -
MOEHTRFARER —2——FNA
+=8  BRBFILEAEBERESFLCE
HEE _ERE_T—=F=A+,H "8
FEFELAMOBF BEZT—=F+=
A=+—HILFE  KAEBMAKKEERE
BRI - E— PR LS HE
B - BEZSRAVBHRREREEMA
B BEREANARLE - EERAEER
BT Al e @ 4L BT I 2 R 32 — P
B o SERRFFET S 5 R ERRF - APEL
ARREMEREZE 4,000,000 T (FHE
731,200,000 70) S #E /M Ol H o RE—
PEER 2 RBRE S AT — R B3k, 5 = B
BRI 2 EAESENR - R —=F
+—-A=+—HB APELEX & HEBESE
A 3 EV16,000,000% T( B B
124,800,000 7T) + I 7 = [& ) F 75 5%
—AlF - RZFTE—WF+=_A=+—H -
BE —Em M 2 8 T AR a0 P B IR
HEHHF o
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. ARESTE

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted
by the Company at the annual general meeting held on 7
September 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company may
at its discretion, invite any employees (whether full-time or
part-time), executives or officers of the Company and any of its
subsidiaries (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors)
and any business consultants, agents, financial or legal
advisers for who the Board of Directors of the Company
considers will contribute or have contributed to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries (the “Eligible Participants”), to take up
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to the Eligible
Participants. The Scheme has expired on 6 September 2014.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme will be a
price determined by the Board of Directors of the Company but
will not be less than the highest of: () the official closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of the Company on which
the share option is offered to an Eligible Participant ("Offer
Date”); (ii) the average of the official closing prices of the
Company's shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share
of the Company.

There is no minimum year for which a share option must be
held before it became exercisable. Share options granted are
exercisable at any time during the exercisable years
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

REARAR_FZTEFNLALAZBRRE
FREMRMZ BRI EE ([ RBAE
gll) ARAESFEARNRABFARARE
ERMERREAERE(TREZBHR
B TTRABXSARE (BRENITRIFH
TER) WRARAREZER/BTENE
REARRBSEEMMHBARERERZE
MRBGER - K2 - BHERER((6E
R2EE ) BXRBBREARBARER
- RS E ERBAERBEE - R
BiEETEBIE N —E—WFENANBER

R T BN RBE  BRARAE
EZEETEZER  BEZERBTINRAT=
Ez&RE  (\NARRAGERSEER
HRBREER((REBEH])  BXMEAR
BXRARARBRND ZEHTRTE  (NRE
ERHAHAMAEELEXA  BXMEARE
RFFRARRIBRMD 2 FHIETETE AR
(i) AR 2 EIfE -

T I S AR T R Al A TE AT L AR A
MREFH EREZBIRE  RARFE
EEERE ZAITTRFE A BER T AT -
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35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Scheme is 46,000,000
shares of the Company, being 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company on the date on which the Scheme was
approved. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted to any Eligible Participants, shall
not, when aggregated with: (i) any share of the Company
issued upon exercise of share options or share options under
other schemes which have been granted to that Eligible
Participant; (ii) any share of the Company which would be
issued upon the exercise of outstanding share options or share
options under other schemes granted to that Eligible
Participant; and (iii) any cancelled shares of the Company
which were the subject of share options or share options
under other schemes which had been granted to and accepted
by that Eligible Participant, in any twelve-month period up to
the Offer Date, exceed 1% of the number of shares of the
Company in issue on the Offer Date.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be made
within 30 days after the Offer Date with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 30,000,000 share
options was granted under the schedule at the exercise price
of HK$1.38 per share. The fair value of the share options is
determined at the date of grant under Black-Scholes Model by
an independent valuer. All share options was exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Mandatory provident scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”)

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance after the implementation of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately in an independently managed
fund. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant
aggregate income with a cap of HK$1,500 (1.1.2014 to
31.5.2014: HK$1,250 and 1.6.2014 to 31.12.14: HK$1,500; 2013:
HK$1,250) per employee per month. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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35.

36.

R8I ()

RIBR A BT ] B 2 BRI FTS K&
2 % = R 15 BB /46,000,000 A% A& 2 7] B
7 AR RBIRIERBEFEER 2B %
TR 10% - EERE AHIEEA+ @A
Hif - (B A B8 2 B35 R e R R AT
BhzmmBNEE  EEAT=FREKE
KA - T EBARRNEH AR BT
BPEE 2 1% : () AITERE - HRTTHE
ZABER2EEDEREME 8 T 2R RE
e BT ZARBEABA | (i) BITERTT
EREE - AATTEZEERSEEDER
HibaH & T 2 BEEMAE TEITZARRE
ARt - AR (i BRERZAERSEE
BEERRZ N ST 2 RS R
ZARAUERIE R

REEHBHE=THABRIELERTENR
IRHEZIRTE © G R NRBIAE - BIER AR
RAIARR XN AAREZFIR1ABT

BHE-_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE"

30,000,000 17 R EE RIER EXRLITEE
B38BT RE - RBEZAFETINE
BB AERIER D — B
BABE -BE_T-OFt+_-_A=1+—H
LHFE - RBRREBEITRE -

RIRE R ET S
BEMEARETE ((BEEsTE )

R bl RERETEROIETE - AEEE
RIR R B 1 ATE S T BB 2 #7 Bl X 48 51l 5%
SRR EETE c RSB CEE o H
REVERESARA - AEBEETHE
EEMBHTE - e EBEESBBBKAS%
EHER - ERASRETHA1,50087T -
—E2—HF—A—HE=-_Z—NFHA
=+—H 1208 TRk —NFNA—
BE_ZF—NWFE+=-_A=+—8H :1,500/%8
T ZE—=F 12508 7T) c HERREL
Br B IBR o
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36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

Superannuation

The Australian subsidiaries had a pension scheme that is
operated by the trustee, superannuation, which has a
compulsory element whereby employers are required by law
to pay a proportion of employee's salaries and wages (currently
9% (2013: 9%)) into a superannuation fund, which can be used
when the employee retires.

The employees of the subsidiaries in Australia are members of
superannuation operated by the trustee. Employers must make
superannuation contributions to the employees’ designated
superannuation fund at least every three months. The
superannuation contributions are invested over the period of
the employees’ working life and the sum of compulsory and
voluntary contributions, plus earnings, less taxes and fees is
paid to the person when they choose to retire. The sum most
people receive is predominantly made up of compulsory
employer contributions. The trustee is responsible for pension
liability to the retired staff.

Superannuation applies to all working Australians, except those
earning less than AUD450 (equivalent to HK$3,000) per month,
or aged under 18 or over 70. Individuals can choose to make
extra voluntary contributions to their superannuation fund and
receive tax benefits for doing so.

The total costs charged to profit or loss represent contribution
paid or payable to the MPF Scheme and superannuation by the
Group.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 7 March 2014, Guangxi Hoifu Petroleum Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 65% equity
interest of Beibuwan Yuchai Energy Chemical Co., Ltd.
(“Beibuwan Energy”), at a consideration of 19,426,624 shares
and cash of approximately RMB ¥97,672,000 (HK$123,663,000).
Beibuwan Energy is a company incorporated in Guangxi and is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of olefins
and aromatics. The acquisition lay a solid foundation and good
operating conditions for the Group’s long-term development of
trading business in Guangxi.

36.

37.

RIERIGE (&)

ARSI

BB ARRBHERABTBEZEKRET
g BIRTESETEl - HAPAeiE 2 s sHEm
BERTARBEAFIREEF SR IEN—
FAEAL(BAAY%(ZZE—=4:9%))MA
ANESESHK - HEATPMEERIKEEA o

BNHBARIZEINERABRBZARS
AEIKE - BEAZLEBR=ZFEAREER
EZRBEESELAESHR - AEeH
A B EBEEDETIRE - Mokl kB R
HR (Bl R HBRHIERER) 2 B8R
BRAALTBEBRABREAN - KEHH AW
W2z BEEEhEE BB FRAMN - BIX
BTIZRHGRERETIARR

AESHEBEBARNBRMITEEBRAL - HET
BIEE R WA DR 4508 7T (F55 13,0007
TO) B FRT R 18R KBIB70EZ AT © &
BIATAREREAESHEELEEINEFE
MEGESR - WA AL SRR -

BESMRZERA /AR E RIS &
RATEEFEI BB Z R -

W A B BB X B

R-ZZE—MNF=ZA+B  KXARZ2EKBA
RIEMYLE A BA R ARSI 50E T4 a
B TERAA([3EEBEBLIR]) 2 65%
5 RIB 519,426,624 B RIS AR
# 97,672,000 7T (123,663,00075 7T ) ° 4t 3 &
BERARERZMEKIIZ AR TBRERK
REFREEERHEE - KBEBEAAEER
EREBEXKREXRATEBEARER
TS &G o
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WiBKMIB AT (&)

The following table summarises the fair value of consideration TREL gt U EE L IR AR B MR B 2 A
paid for the acquisitions of Beibuwan Energy and the fair value BEANCWEBEE KRS AEEERIWER 5
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition AN (=1
date.
HK$'000
FAT
Fixed assets BEE&EE 6,695
Deposit paid for acquisition of land Wit E R 25T S
use rights 139,271
Other receivable, prepayments and deposit H fth fEULBE X « TA{ 318 Rikd 43,960
Bank balance (general accounts) and cash  #R17417 (— R EP) RIR&E 26,110
Other payable and accrual HA SRR R ERTE A (92)
Tax payables FES R TR (1,861)
Net assets BEFE 214,083
Non-controlling interests e R 74,929
Net assets attributable to the owners KRREEAELREEFE
of the Company 139,154
Satisfied by: LARFI A AT
Cash B 123,663
Shares issued BETRGD 41,573
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EE 2B 26,082
Included in the loss for the year are approximately loss of FTAFEEE AUIEIL &L RFTE LB E
HK$234,000 attributable from the acquisition of Beibuwan #9234,0007% 7T o = it Y B I 4 B AE R UK
Energy. No revenue for the year generated from the above i)

mentioned acquisitions.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, total WKEER—_ZE—NF—A—H=K ' ~&
group revenue for the year would have been approximately B2 F = WS 425 49/5313,127,0007 7T
HK$313,127,000, and loss for the year would have been M BB #)7438,753,000/8 T - tBE &
approximately HK$38,753,000. The pro forma information is for BHERFBEREZ T —EAMBER=-Z
illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an indication of —OFE—H—HENREAEE A BERER 2
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually Wes RACEFELE 7 61T - IV ERER R ZE4E
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed 2 TEA o

on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of future

results.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WiBKMIB AT (&)

Net cash outflow on the above acquisition

LS 2 R & R

HK$'000
THET

Cash consideration paid ENIRESRE 123,663

Less cash and cash equivalent balance B BEWEEIR e MERRSIAR &%
acquired 26,110
97,553

On 2 April 2013, Fame Achiever Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire interest
of China Oil Resources Company Limited (“China Qil"), at
consideration of approximately US$700,000 (equivalent of
approximately HK$5,439,000). The amount was satisfied by
cash. China Oil is an investment holding company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its investment is 92% equity interest in
PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) Limited (“PetroAsian Tunisia”), a
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands. PetroAsian
Tunisia is principally engaged in exploration and exploitation of
hydrocarbon deposits in Tunisia.

On 22 July 2013, Hoifu Group Investments Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire equity
interest of Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company Limited,
from Gloryview Holdings Limited (“Vendor”), a company
beneficially wholly owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company, at a consideration of HK$1, satisfied
by cash. The acquisition also constitutes a connected
transaction under Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules. The
assets and liabilities of Madagascar Northern Petroleum
Company Limited consisted solely of exploration and
evaluation assets and a shareholder’s loan immediately prior
to the completion of the acquisition by the Group. Fair value of
the exploration and evaluation assets at the acquisition was
determined to be nil and according to the sales and purchase
agreement, rights to the shareholder loan was transferred by
the Vendor to the Group upon completion. Accordingly, the net
asset acquired by the Group at the time of completion
amounted to nil and the goodwill arising from the acquisition
was considered immaterial.

R-E—=FmA=-H KA 2EHEBEA
RS EERERARKEFT HEREBR AR
([Hm]) 28z - R{EXA700,0003% 7T
(488 M 495,439,0005% 7T ) » A BB FRIBLAIR
SXF o BHARBEEEMK L 2R EZR
NE HREAREBRELES MK
FRgeR(RERAE)ERAR([PIRaR(3
JEFEE) 1),z 92% A% #E - R EsaEiR (ZREFTR)
FTERREFA BT LTERIE KR

MRZZE—Z=F+A=Z+=B  XRAlZEE
MBAAYEREREBRDAARE B
TAAARTESTEHE L2 EERE
A Z & \Gloryview Holdings Limited ([ &
7 1) S E ML S BB AR A R 2
A&HE - AR A o WE IR AR - Th AR AR
BIAAETZERS - FEMATMIE S A
BAERARZEERBBEEBEHR LT
BENRBEEASERBTKAMZBRRE
R MFERTHEERETREBSRREZA
TEEAT MBBREERZ  EHRTK
BERRERZENEZTAEE - Elt -
AEERTREAMBBEEFERT K
BELEZEHEWRALTERK -
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WiBKMIB AT (&)

0On 26 August 2013, Hoifu Mineral Resources Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 60%
equity interest of Zhen Hua Company Limited (“Zhen Hua"), at a
consideration of 30,000,000 share options and HK$1. At the
acquisition date, the fair value of the share options is
approximately HK$4,744,000. Zhen Hua is a company
incorporated in Kenya and is principally engaged in the
exploration, exploitation and production of minerals. The
acquisition enable the Group to further expand its scope of
business in the natural resources sector and enhance the
future natural resources reserves of the Group. The
consideration for the acquisition comprises a cash
consideration of HK$1 and the 30,000,000 share option at the
exercise price of HK$1.38.

The following table summarises the fair value of consideration
paid for the acquisitions of China Oil and Zhen Hua and the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

RZB—=FNA=Z+-B KRR zE2E
MR A Y = REE ERIERB R A AWK
EERAAI(IRE DO%K#E REA
30,000,00017 BER&#E K2 178 7T » FAUREE B ER
B E 2 R FELNEL744,0008 T  kE
BRAEREFMERI 2 AR - EEREEY
B AR RAEE - WEZRAEERRRE
BITHE—PEREXGEE  WReEAE
ERR 2 RABRER - WELREBRER
% X {8 1% 7t % 30,000,000 17 171 1B £ 1.38
P 2 BERR E o

TR KR R REE N R EZ AT
ELARERBAERE AR FRKEE S
ZAFE

China Oil Zhen Hua
b e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FABT
Exploration and evaluation assets DRERRAFTEE 6,013 -
Mineral mining rights FRHEE - 12,012
Deferred tax liability EERIBRE = (3,603)
Net assets BEFE 6,013 8,409
Non-controlling interest FEIEAR M 2 (4817) (3,364)
Net asset attributable to KRB AEBLEETE
the owners of the Company 5,532 5,045
Satisfied by: LAAT AT -
Cash REe 5,439 -
Share options REARE - 4,744
Gain on bargain purchase HEREE 2 93 301
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WiBKMIB AT (&)

Included in the loss for the year are approximately HK$237,000 FAFEEEAWNERARIKREMELLD
and HK$1,001,000 attributable from the acquisition of China Oil 237,0007%8 7t % 1,001,00078 T © | it Yg BE I
and Zhen Hua. No revenue for the year generated from the HMEAFEWE o

above mentioned acquisitions.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013, the HKBENR—_E—=F—A—H=xk ' K&
revenue and loss for the year of the Group would have been B 7 EE W R EIEE S B4 A& 562,886,000
approximately HK$562,886,000 and HK$23,887,000. The pro 770 % 23,887,000 7T © #5%E & BHE 57 A7
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not A%z T EAMKER-_ZE—=F—AF—
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations Ak AEE A BEIEM 2 WS MK &%
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the B 7 IIE 0 IR ERIRELS 2 FE A -

acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

Net cash outflow on the above acquisition KBRS R FEE

China Oil Zhen Hua
] wE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT

Cash consideration paid BEEERE 5,439 -
Less: cash and cash equivalent B BB S R

balance acquired ZRIRSIBR & = -

5,439 =
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 38.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no disposal of a
subsidiary was noted.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group disposed
a subsidiary to Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, an executive Director for
the Company, for the consideration of HK$90,000. The net
assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows:

Consideration received:

HE—ERELQF

BE_ZT-NF+_A=1t—HLEFE I
IR LE—RMEAR -

BE_ZT—=F1+-"A=t—HBLEFE XK
SERARRRTESTERELAEHE
B AR - H(E %R 90,000/ 7T o %M B A A
RHEEBHZEEFEWT

EWRAE :

2013
-z =

HK$'000
T

Cash received B IR & - 90
Analysis of assets and liabilities REERRZEER
as the date of disposal: BBz :

Fixed assets BEE&E - =

Bank balances and cash RITHEERRS - 4

Amount due to a Director B —REERE - (23)

Net liabilities disposed of BEHEaEFE - (19)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HeE B AR Z kS - 109

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZESRAFE

Cash consideration BeRE - 90

Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of & : B HERITEEFERIRS - (@)
- 86
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39.

40.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the ended 31 December 2014, part of the consideration
for the purchases of subsidiaries that occurred during the year
comprised shares. Further details of the acquisitions are set up
in note 37.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, part of the
consideration for the purchase of a subsidiary comprised
shares option. Further details of the acquisitions are set out in
note 37.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 October 2014, Guangdong Hoifu Energy Limited
("Guangdong Hoifu"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Ccompany, entered into an agreement (“the Agreement”) with
Hebei Panbao Zeolite Technology Co., Ltd and Ms. Yang Ren
and Huanghe Eternal Momentum, not related to the Group,
pursuant to which Guangdong Hoifu will purchase the entire
55% issued share capital of Hebei Panbao Zeolite Technology

0., Ltd (the “Target”) for a total consideration of
HK$34,134,007 (“the Acquisition”), which was paid by
29,174,365 shares as a deposit upon signing of the Agreement.
The Target is principally engaged in mining and production of
zeolite, which is the main raw material for the production of
lightweight orthopedics materials, far infrared materials, large
solar energy storage materials, building materials, catalytic
materials and micro and nano materials, and related products.
The transaction was completed on 11 February 2015 and the
closing price on that day was HK$1.17 per share. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Group’s circular dated 8 October
2014 and 31 October 2014.

On 6 February 2015, the Company entered into a Subscription
Agreement with an independent third party. 30,000,000
subscription shares will be issued at HK$1.23 each.

On 9 February 2015, the Company entered into a Subscription
Agreement with an independent third party. 30,000,000
subscription shares will be issued at HK$1.2 each.

—HETZA=+—BLEE

39.

40.

ERFBREXRS

BE_ZT-NF+_A=t—HLFE #F
Wﬁﬁéiﬁ\%ﬁﬁﬁ}%ﬁaz&nﬁ%@%ﬂx
e BRANBERE - SHBEHNME
7 ¢

BE-T-=#1T-A=t+-ALFE K
B-HKBARZ B RERERRE - &
BRI 2 e — S RE BRI 3 37 -

BEMREER

R-FB-—NF+ANE  ARARAZAWER
AERAERLRERAR((ERYE]) 8T
ILBEAE AR A R R A A B
@2 BB Lt RETRET L5 (%1%
BBl ERYEEBETLEERT
PHEBR AR ([BBAR) 2 #55% 2817

IR A - 48 X (8 /34,134,007 7% 7T ([ Y & =
B FEAREBEDCREBTZHER MK

29,174,365 IR fn X M ERIRE - BREA A
CEBEBAARKEERANUKEBE
m o A AREESEERME  BAINEM
B REUKBZBEEREM R - BEME - Bk
B RBAARM B 2 EZ2RME - RHER
—hE_A+—HZEX mRORER
ZWﬁF%E%1W%ﬁ ﬁ%%%%ﬁz
HESRASREHH A m¢+ﬂﬂa
&ff—m¢+ﬂz+—az

R-ZE—RAF - A/NH ' KAARIE—FBH
F=FEIMRERZE  BEeSR1.238T2
B #4377 30,000,000 F& R BB (D °

T-AF_ANA  AARE—RBL

%EﬁnTiwuﬁﬁTﬁ ﬂ%?ﬁ%12xﬁﬁ2
B %317 30,000,000 I 2 BE A% (5
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40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

On 24 March 2015, the Group and an independent third party,
have entered into sales and purchase agreement for the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Karl Thomson Energy
Limited and all its subsidiaries with consideration amounted
HK$3,000,000. The Karl Thomson Energy Limited and its
subsidiaries are engaged in investment in Petroleum
exploration in Egypt.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

(@) During the year, the Group received commission income
and other securities dealing income from securities
dealing of approximately HK$183,000 (2013: HK$9,000)
from close family members of two Directors, Messrs.
Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun.

(b)  During the year, the Group received interest income from
securities dealing of approximately HK$Nil (2013: HK$100)
from close family members of two Directors, Messrs.
Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun.

(c) During the year, the Group received interest income from
securities margin financing of approximately HK$8 (2013:
Nil) from ATNT, in which two Directors, Messrs. Lam
Kwok Hing and Nam Kwonk Lun, have controlling interest.

(d)  During the year, the Group received commission income
and other income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$16,000 (2013: HK$13,000) from ATNT,
in which two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam
Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

(e) At 31 December 2014, an executive Director, Mr. Nam
Kwok Lun, advanced approximately HK$86,969,000 (2013:
HK$65,878,000) to the Group. During the year, the Group
paid finance costs of HK$3,721,000 (2013: HK$2,089,000)
to the executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.
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40. HEMERBIE(E)

41.

MRZZE—RAF=A=1+WA  AEEHE—F
B E =M B E e - LAR{E 3,000,000
BTHESEERERARREZBHBEA
A)2 100% f%# - = 5 82RAB R A &) R EHKT
BARINERRERRBFERE -

BEALRS
BEALRS

(@ RAFEARN AREREZFEZAOM
FEFERBRAENERRLERS
Z R BERK B WA & WA R B A %
BEEWRALN /1830008 T(ZF—=
F 9,000 7T) °

) RAFERN AEERIELFEEMMA
MEESERBRLERERMBEER
LR HRRER B IWEA BRAHE
BIL(ZE—=%F : 100/87L) °

© REAFEAR AEEREFRED R
BETMBE(MEESERBELEEN
E BRI A R ES D) WEH S
WAKISHETL (=T —=F : &) -

d RAFER AEEHRBZIHEEEET
M (B ERERE A NER R
ARSI WA WA K
H AW A4 16,0008 T (ZT— =4 :
13,0007 7T) °

€ R-ZE—MNF+-_A=1+—8 7=
EEHERELERNAEEDLRY
86,969,000 t( = T — = F:
65,878,000 7T) - TN+ AEBE MBIT
EREAGEESNYBHERS 721,000
BT (=T —=4 : 2,089,000/87T) °
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BEALTRG (&)

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued) BMEALRS (&

()  During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group  #HE—ZTZ—NHOF+_A=+—HLHF
made minimum lease payments under operating leases B AEEGRHAEMELERLDMA
in respect of office premises of approximately ARMITESTEHELTHE2EES
HK$2,160,000 to Gahood Holding Company Limited, a JRAEEEAERANINRERSD
company indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an 2,160,000 7T ° ZIBR 5 INEK L
executive Director of the Company. The transaction also HAIKIEE 14ATB N 2 HEBRAIER S ©

constitutes a continuing connected transaction under
Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel TEEEAS M
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows: FRESZFZMEmT :
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Short-term benefits 52 HAE A 11,211 11,216
Post-employment benefits RIREF 51 54
11,262 11,270
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the SEMeHFMEZESRANALTZRER
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of TIEBEET o

individuals and market trends.

137



HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED « SlEfFREBEERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HIFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

42.

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

Country/
place of
incorporation
KL
BF/ %

Karl Thomson British Virgin
Financial Group Limited Islands ("BVI")

BEERREARAR EERLEE

Karl-Thomson Securities Hong Kong
Company Limited &

BEEFERAR

Karl-Thomson Commodities Hong Kong

Company Limited Fh
BEBRIEERAR

Karl Thomson Hong Kong
Finance Limited Bl

RERBERAR

Karl Thomson Credit Limited Hong Kong

EEEHERAA Bk

Karl Thomson Investment Hong Kong

Consultants Limited BE
BEREBRAERAH

138

Principal
place of
business
FTREXHE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
ERTR
HEBRA

HK$10
1027

HK$5,000,000
5,000,0007%7C

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 7

HK$20,000,000
20,000,0007% 7

HK$10,000

10,0007

HK$1,000,000
1,000,0007% 7T

TENRBLFE

TR EZR/YARBXENEEERE
FEIARAEMBAR - EEFRR 1R
HEMMBRARZFEESREBNIE

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE Principal activities
BETRAEELAH TTEY
2014 2013
“E2-MF
%
ARl
100 100 Investment holding
REER
100 100 Securities dealing
and broking

ERRERELR

100 100 Futures and
options broking
e RERELE
100 100 Securities margin
financing

100 100 Money lending
&

100 100 Broking of mutual funds
and insurance-linked
investment plans
and products

BEE:  REEH
REHEREREL
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Country/

place of Principal
incorporation place of
EREK L business

BX/ % IRERBA

Karl Thomson Financial Hong Kong Hong Kong
Advisory Limited % &k

AERERBERAR

Access Way Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong

AERARE &

Karl Thomson Worldwide Hong Kong Hong Kong
Immigration Consultants Limited &7 &5
EBERFERBHERAR

7l

Karl Thomson International Hong Kong Hong Kong
Immigration Consultant Limited &8 BE
EEERERBRERAR

i

Karl Thomson Energy Limited BVI Hong Kong
RfEERERAT RBRES i
Oriental Victor Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong
ERFERAA i &R
Sky Energy Investment Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong
AR EBRAT &k Bl
Volant Petroleum Limited Australia Australia
M e
Pan Pacific Petroleum BVI Egypt
Egypt Pty Limited RBRTES KR

42. TEMBE LT (&)

Proportion of
Issued and nominal value of
fully paid issued share capital
share capital held by the Group
BETR rEERE Principal activities
HEBRA BRTRAEELS TTEY
2014
—E-mE
%
BAK
HK$600,000 51 51 Corporate finance advisory
600,000 7T EREER
US$1 100 100 Holding of computer
3 equipment
FRERRE
HK$10 60 60 Investment Immigration
08T Consultancy
REBRER
HK$10,000 100 100 Investment Immigration
10,0007T Consultancy
REBRER
US$1 100 100 Investment holding
3 RERR
HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
10,00077T RAHER
HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
1587 RERR
AUD35,011,303 100 100 Investment holding
35,011,303 RERR
AUD2,000 100 100 Qil and gas exploration
2,007 and production
BB RAARFR
REE
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. TEMB LT (&)

Proportion of
Country/ Issued and nominal value of
place of Principal fully paid issued share capital
incorporation place of share capital held by the Group
KL business BRTR rRERE Principal activities
BF/ % FEEXHE HEBRA BRTRAEELS TTEY
2014
“2-IF
%
BAK
First Energy Pty Limited Australia Australia AUD550,382 100 100 Investment holding
i e 550,382 27T REER
Aminex Petroleum Egypt Limited BVI Egypt AUD65,660 60 60 Oil and gas exploration
ABRAHE &R 65,6602 and production
BERRARARREE
Hoifu Energy Interational BVI Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Trading in natural resources
Trading Company Limited HBRIES Bl 10087 KRERES
B RERESERAR
Hoifu Energy Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
B RERERAR RBRIES i 100£71 RERR
Fame Achiever Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
FEERARAT RBRIES i (e RARR
Shiny Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
BEEEERAT & 6 100787T RAER
PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 92 92 Oil and gas exploration
PR (RERS) BRAH RBRIES i 100057 and production
BERRARARREE
China Yuchai Hoifu Energy BVI Hong Kong US$3,000,000 51 5T Investment holding
International Limited RERNES Bk 3,000,000% 7T RAER
TR A ei Yl YNG]
Guangdong Hoifu Petroleum Limited ~ PRC PRC RMB25,500,000 85 85 Trading in natural resources
ERIERRERAR i i AR%25,500,0007 ARERES
Beibuwan Yuchai Energy Chemical ~ PRC PRC RMB180,000,000 65 - Trading in natural resources
Co. Ltd. i i AR 180,000,000 AERES
EBERLER I IERAR
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42.

Country/ Issued and
place of Principal fully paid
incorporation place of share capital
EREK L business BRTR

BX/ % IRERBA BRRA

Guangxi Hoifu Petroleum Limited PRC PRC RMB30,000,000
BRI ERRERAR el el AR30,000,000 7
Hoifu Group Investment Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100
IEEEREGRAR ABRAHE i 100%7T
Madagascar Northern Petroleum BVI Madagascar US$100

Company Limited RERUEE SEMEN 10057

ST RRERAT

Zhen Hua Company Limited Kenya Kenya KES100,000
RERRAR BT ARE 1000005 BE%R
Guangxi Hoifu Energy Limited PRC PRC RMB30,000,000
BRI ERERAR i i AR 30,000,007
Karl Thomson Property Agency HK HK HK$100

Limited Bk BB 10077T
AREHEREARAR

The Company directly holds the interest in Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited and Hoifu Energy Holdings Limited. All
other subsidiaries shown above are indirectly held by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
end of the year or at any time during the year.

FERBLAR (&)
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE Principal activities
BRTRAEELS TTEY
2014
“2-IF
%
BAK
100 100 Trading in natural resources
ARERES
100 100 Investment holding
RERR
100 100 Qil and gas exploration
and production
BHRRARARREE
60 60 Minerals exploration and
production
BERRLEE
100 100 Trading in chemical materials
tIRKES
100 ~ Property consulting
ESE

ARREERFAREEREEAR AR R
BRERERBR AT 2w - T LllPTAE
B DR 2 SR AARAREREE -

RAFREERFERFRETMAERE  HEQF
BEEMHABTEZEEES
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. AR T 2B AR TR
THE COMPANY

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHT B AR ZE 89,828 89,828
89,828 89,828
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a)  FEULH B A TIBRFR (HfsEa) 653,339 559,563
Other amounts receivable, HMpEEEDR  BNRERIRS
prepayments and deposits 220 220
Bank balances (general accounts) RITEET (—RERP) RIR®
and cash 289 37,819
653,848 597,602
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary (note a) FEfRt—FEM B A R FRIE (Kata) 78 -
Other payables and accrued expenses HAbfETBR R R EET & A 1,293 1,422
Amount due to a Director (note b) N —ZEE I (HaED) 34,192 32,528
35,563 33,950
Net current assets REBEEFE 618,285 563,652
Net assets EEFE 708,113 653,480
Capital and reserves IR AR &8
Share capital &N 154,345 148,810
Reserves (note ¢) it (Katc) 553,768 504,670
Total equity R AREE 708,113 653,480
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. KRR ZHBARREK (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: BitaE -
() The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and (a) Bl () MB AR ZRIEAEIKR - 2 RIRE
recoverable/(repayable) on demand. Sk E,(EE) ©
(b) The amount due to a Director is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong (b) B —R2ERFIEAEERR  RXFRITBRE
Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited (2013: Hong Kong Prime BREBEMNR(-ZE—=4F: XFRITFARES
Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited) per annum and are repayable SEEMNR)GEA B RNERKIEERE -
on demand.
() Movement in reserves (© EEEEE)
Capital Share Share
Share Contributed redemption Repurchase option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve Reserve reserve losses Total
R E BARS BLRORE ROABERE RRERE -5 ] &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TERT BT BT TERT TET
At 1 January 2013 R-F—=F—f—R 120,490 372,031 = = = (15,108) 477,413
Loss and total comprehensive FEEBBRZAZHASE
expenses for the year - - - - - (18,770) (18,770)
Share issued BETRR 42,240 - - - - - 42,240
Share repurchase and cancelled  JR(HFEE RaT 44 (957) - 74 - - (78) (957)
Effect of share options BREZYE = = = = 4,744 = 4,744
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=4+ZA=1+-H 161,773 372,031 74 - 4,744 (33952 504,670
Loss and total comprehensive FEFBREZAI AR
expenses for the year - - - - - (18,698) (18,698)
Share issued BEIRR 70,847 - - - - - 70,847
Share repurchase and cancelled IR EER Kt (34,969) - 2,325 - - - (32,644)
Share repurchase and pending BRI R B ABUH
for cancellation - - - (8,807) - - (8,807)
Effect of share options ERE s w8 43,144 - - - (4,74) - 38,400
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-MFE+=-A=1+—8H 240,795 372,031 2,399 (8,807) = (52,650) 553,768
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HOIFU ENERGY GROUP LIMITED « SlEfFREBEERA A

Five Years Financial Summary

HFEMEHE

Year ended 31 December
BE+=A=+-HLFE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—TTF —FT——F —T=F ZF-@OmF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FABT FET FET F#&T
RESULTS E4
Revenue Uz 41,824 30,949 18,974 562,886 313,127
Loss before taxation MR FLRIEHE (85,351) (371,024) (21,777) (22,268) (39,474)
Taxation credit TIEE R - - - 300 721
Loss for the year FEEE (85,351) (371,024) (21,777) (21,9698) (38,753)
Attributable to: FEAf -
Owners of the Company  ANAFHEA A (56,170) (270,281) (21,265) (21,471) (37,756)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E{EpR4E S (29,181) (100,743) (512) 497) (997)
(85,351) (371,024) (21,777) (21,968) (38,753)
Loss per share TR EE
HK$(0.0882) HK$(0.4244) HK$(0.0281)  HK$(0.0147) HK$(0.0249)
Basic FHA (0.0882) /BT (0.4244)7 7T (0.0281)787C  (0.0147)787T  (0.0249) B T
Diluted e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TEA i A T3 A TiEH

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2014
—E-TE —T——F T —2-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T THT TET FET THET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE®E
Total assets BESE 670,916 278,943 398,153 453,562 584,023
Total liabilities BERE (172,292) (141,869) (179,112) (190,742)  (218,875)

498,624 137,074 219,041 262,820 365,148
Equity attributable to ViN/NEIEZ 2 =N

owners of the Company (L #Ezs 442,396 179,463 261,971 290,912 320,285

Non-controlling interests ~ 3E{ZEpRAE 2 56,228 (42,389) (42,930) (28,092) 44,863
Total equity TS E%R 498,624 137,074 219,041 262,820 365,148
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